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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Business Review

The Group recorded & turnover of HK$60,685,000 lor the year ended
March 31, 2002 representing a decrease of 10.3% froem HK$67,621,000
faor the previous year. The loss attributable to shareholders for the year
ended March 31, 2002 was HK$39.708,000 representing an
improvement of 60.2% as compared with HK$99,829,000 in 2001,

Market and Business
Credit Card Business:

The Group acouired two subsidiaries in Apsil 2000 to camry on bosiness
in Hong Kong 52 non-bank standalone cand issuer and sevvice provider
for MasterCand Cards and Countdown Discount Cards. MasterCand is
ane of the world’s most recognised and accepted credis casds with
cash advance facilities at amtomatic teflar machines. Countdown
Discount Cards entitie the holders to discounts andfor peivileges on
purchases made o participating merchanis in 26 coundries around the
warld.

The credit cand indistry has been operating wnder fierce competition
and the Group has positioned its development plan over cemain niche
segments th meet ever-rising customer demands. The Growp has taken
positive steps to carry out tight control on loan assessments and
approvals and will continue 1o exercise a conservative and prudent
policy in granting loamns in cnder to maintain a quality loan portfolio
and reduce the credit risk exposure of the Growp,

The dowdowsn in the IS economy, coupled with the effects of the
evenis of September 11, 2001, serfously affected the Hoag Kong nsarket
The unemployment rate has reached a record high of approximately
7.7%; accompanied by & siege in personal bankruptcy to over 10,0080
cases for the first six months of 2002, Despite the difficult operating
environmeant, the Credit Card business reconded a turmover of HK$49.7
rillion, representing an increase of 17.7% from 2001. During the same
period, it had an operating profit of approximately HK§8.4 million as
compared to & loss of HK$1.1 million in 2001. The results support the
fact that 2002 was a growth and development year for the Credin Card
business.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT - continued

Financial and Securities fnvestment

The financial and secusities imvestment division of the Group recoaded
a turmover of HESE. 7 million for the year ended March 31, 2002,
representing an increase af 4.2% frpem HKS6.4 million for the previous
year, Although the financial market was highly volatile during the period,
the financial and securities investment division recorded an eperating
profit of HK$7.8 million as compated te 3 loss of HK$T2.2 million in
2001, The Group is cautious i imvestment and fund management, with
thee aim to optimise return, sateguard assets and satisfy Fiquidity
requirements. A professional treasury team i dedicated 10 managing
the investment of the funds.

Property fnvestment

Despite a series of interest rates cuts, the property markel continues its
dowsrward trend. Operation inceme from propery investment declined
due 1o weakened market conditions hut the sitsation was maoderated
by effective cost seduction. Due to the uncertainty in the propesty
market, the development. of the sites will be deferred. Further cost
cutting meastnes on operating overhead will be implemented,

China Gas Holdings Limited

As a1 March 31, 2002, the Company holds & 52.86% interest:in the
ordinary shares of a listed subsidiary, China Gas Haldings Limited
(*China Gas"} ormedy known a5 Hai Xia Holdings Limited]. China
Gas has recently diversified into the energy sector in the People’s
Republic of China [*PRC"} by entering into agreements 10 invest in
joing ventures in naturzl gas projects in 1he cuter Reifing area, in Hunan
and Hubei Prowinces in the PRC.

eRanker and Global Med

In fanuary 2002, the Group completed the acgusisition of its imvestments
in Glohal Med Technologies, Inc. ("Global Med”) and eSznker USA.com,
Inc. (“eBanker™h with an aggregate consideration which was satistied
by rediscing the amount of comvertible debentures isswed by eMision
Imerrational, Inc., a principal associate of the Group. As at March 31,
2002, the Group holds an interest of approximately 40.3% interest in
eBanker and an aggregaie i of appeoxi 1y 58.4% in Global
Mad (comprising divect interest of 12.5% and through eBanker
of 45.9%L.

eBanker is principally engaged in the provision of high-margin products
and services to underserved financizl niche markets, eBanker offers
financial products and services incheding corporie credit card facilitzes,
customised corporate financing, share financing, bond financing and
propeny developnent financing.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT - continued

Global Med is an e-Health medical indormation technology company
providing information management software products and services o
the healthcare industry. Global Med has completed the develop

of SAFETRACE® and SAFETRACE TX™, a transfusion management
information system that is designed to be used by hospitals and
centralized transfusion centers to help insure the quality of blood
transfused into patient-recipients. SAFETRACE TX™ provides electronic
cross-matching capabilities fo help blood compatibility with
patient-recipients and will wack. imventory, bill and document all
activities with bloed produects from the time blood produwcts are received
in inventory 1o the time the blood products are used or returned to
blood centers.

Global Med's Wyadgate Techrologies division is a leading suppiier of
management information systems 1o .S, blood centers. Global Med
cominues o concentrite s develop effosts on enh 18 10
its existing SAFETRACE® blood bank product and SAFETRACE TX'™,
Wyndgate's transfusion management information system software
product. The Food and Drug Administration of USA bas cleared both
products for sabe in the Linited States. SafeTrace Tx is a Microsoft™
Windows® hased, featuse-rich hospital transfssion service manag) t
information system that is uniguely designed and provea 1o fully support
enterprise-wide centralized transfusion services (CTS) management. This
is in addition 1o izs o o success in the small hospitallaboratory
environment, Features include advanced functionality such as elactronic
and remote crossmatch, automated patient special needs and antigen/
antibody screens. Wyndgate's donor managemens product, SafeTrace,
is & comprehensive, Entegrated blood center management information
systeen built on an Oracle relatonal datab managy system
(RDBMS). Cusrent clients of Wyndgate's products and services manage
more than 3.3 million units of blood or over 229% of the .5, blood
supply each year.

Global Med's subsidiary, Peoplemed.com, Inc. ("PeopleMed” supports
chronic disease management as an Application Service Prowider.
PeopleMed's system uses the Internet to coordinate sources and users
of a patient’s clinical information, including laboratory, pharmacy,
primary and specialty care providers, claims, and medical records. In
addition to the system’s Internet capabilities, PeopleMed also plans to
include imterfaces 10 hand-held devices, fax machines, alphanumeric
papers, i tive voice and many {ypes of patient-monitoring
devices in ifs information inlrastructure.

For the three monrths ended March 31, 2002, Giobal Med reparied
income from operztions of LISS39,000 on revenues of WS, 587,000,
The Compary also posted positive cash flows from operations of
LS546.000 for the quarter: This compares with a loss from operations
of USS817.000 and revenaes of US51,259,000 for the comparzble three
mianihs ended March 31, 2001,
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT - continued

PROSPECTS

O April 24, 2002, the Group entered into 2 Compromise Agreement
with MBf Asia Capital Corporation Heldings Limated (“MBf Asia®) relating
10 the settlement of the litigation in refation to the credil card business,
Purspant to the Compromise Agreement, the Groap will ransier 168%
interest i a subsidiary, Online Credit Card Limited ("OCCL") 10 MB{
Asia, MBI Asia is part of a conglomerate operating principally in
Malaysia that is one of the lasgest credit card issuers in Malaysia, By
introducing MB{ Asia as a sirategic sharehalder, it s expected that the
cragit cand business will benefit in torms of utilizing the knowledge
and expertise of MBI Asia in the credit card. industry, obtaining
infarmation technology support from MBT Asia and assistarice from
MB] Asia towards OCCL in seeking recognition with VISA International
1o become cne of its Hoensed cradit card isuers.

A [ P

According to the Energy Inf of UGS Department
of Energy, natwral gas usage in the PRC in 1999 only accounted dor
2.8% of total energy consumption, which is especially low when
compared to an average of 22% in developed countries. Coupled with
favourable government environmental policies and wider conswmer
acceptance, it is expecied that the usage of natural gas will increase
substantially, The construction of West to East Pipelines project and
gas transmissian ok are cusmently ing. As the PRC's energy
eector continues 10 evolve with the heightensd use of natural gas, we
leliewe China Gas is well placed 1o capitalise on the opportunities.
China Gas will expand its nalural gas business by leveraging off the
strengths and the networks of its strategic partners in the PRC. By
inzroducing Hai Xia Finance Holdings Limited as a strategic shareholdes,
it is expected that more PRC natural gas projects will be procured in
the future,

On Jume 28, 2002, the Group entered into a camditiona] agreement to
dispose of a 4% interest in the issued share capital of a subsadiary,
Global Med International Limited ("GMIL™Y to-an independent third
party for a consideration of HK$18 million. Prior to comipleticn of such
agreement, GMIL will hold 45.9% interest in Global Med. Global Med
recently signed five-year marketing, development and ASP agreements
with Mational jewish Medical and Research Center, one of the world's
most senowned respiraiory medical and research centers, 1o jointly
launch an- advanced and comprehensive [mernet-based respiratory
disease management program, Given the huge opportunities in safe
blnod for Africa and China and Clohal Med’s leadership position in
US, we believe Clobal Med has a very exciting fuluse and substantial
capital appreciation potential.

We are realistically optimistic about our future. Our business foundation

Is strong and our strategic parnesships are solid. By effective atilisation
of our capital, we will expand and extend our business in the years to

come,
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT - continued

APPRECIATION

1 would like to thank the members of the Board for their guidance and
1o extend my appreciation to the management and staff for their
cantimsed dedication and hand work.

On hehali of the Board
CHAN HENG FAI
Chairman and Managing Director

Hong Kong, uly 26, 2002
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AN ANALYSIS

Firancial Review

The Group recorded a turnover of approximately HKS60,685.000 for
the year ended March 31, 2002, representing a decrease of
approximately 10.3% as compared 1o the year ended March 31, 2001,
The decrease in tumover was mainly due to decreases in treasury
investment, reailing of fashion apparel and properties investment
businesses despite increases in the credit cand business and financial
and securities investmenis. The loss attributable to shareholders for the
ﬂir ended March 31, 2002 was approximately HK$39, 708,000 as
compared to with approximately HK$99,829,000 in 2001, The
improvement in operating results was mainly attributable 10 the efiect
of the following faciors:

- income pasted from operations of the Group’s credit card buginess
amounting 1o HKS8,404,000 for the year;

- gains amounting 1o HK$30,964,000 from the deemed disposal
-of interest in Chira Gas, through the placement of share of
China Gas, resulling in the dilution of the Groap’s holdings in
China Gas from 56.6% bo 52.9%;

= unrealised gain on other investments of HKS5,590,008; and

- the Group’s further tightening its internal cost controls and
management in an effort 1o raise profil attributable 10
sharehalders.

On the other Land, the Group recorded impairment losses in respect of
goodwill of HK$28,898,000 arising from acquisition of a principal
associate and a deficit of HK$6,177,000 on revaluation and impasmernt
loss recognised in. respect of the Group's property portfolio during the
year.

For the vear ended March 35, 2002, the credit card business contributed
appcmciﬁtwr §2% of the total lwrnover of the Group, Netwithstanding
fierce competition and the well-publicised bad debis problems of the
credit card industry in Hong Kong, the credit card business recorded
an operating profit of approximately HK$8, 404,000 as compared o a
loss of HKS1,001,000 in 2001

The terrorist attack on September 11, 2001 and its subsequent fallow
hawe created uncectaimies in the property market. Gross rental income
from investment properties and properties held for development for the
yeaF 1ed 10 approxi fy HKX$1,351,000 which represents a
decrease of about 29.6% when compared with last year's income of
approximately HK$1,925,000. Because the economic enwircnment
continues to cause weakness in the property ket, develop of
the Group's sites will be deferred.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
~ gontinued

The aggregate turnower of the financial and securities investment and
treasury divissons of the Group for the year ended March 311, 2002
amounted 1o HK$9.5385,000, representing a decrease of 51.9% as
compared to HK$19,918,000 in 2001. Although the securities market
condilions were volatile during the period, the financial and securities
investment and treasury divisions recorded an opesating profit of
HES4.901,000 as compared to a loss of HK$43,672,000 in 2001

During the year, the Group rediced exposure 10 the non-grofitable
operations in the retailing of fashion appare! and accessories due to
the economic downtunn and redeployed resources to high-yield sectoes.
As a result, the Group’s refailing of fashion apparel and accessosies
reperted an operating loss of HK$963,000, while sales dropped by
approacimately 958% o HKS7 6,000,

Liquidity and capital resources

The Group monitors its liquidity position as pant of its ongoing assets
and fiabilities management. The balance between liquidity and
profitability s carefully considensd.

During the period under review, through a placing exercise announced
and completed in August 2001, Chipa Gas placed out 30,000,000 new
ordinary shares at HK$0.60 per share 1o an independent subscriber
raising net proceeds of approndmately HKST 7,500,000,

In November 2007, China Gas entered ino an agresment with Greater
China Holdings Limited (“Greater China”| whereby China Gas agreed
I subscribe for 600,000,000 new ordinary shares of Greater China in
consideration for the issue, by China Gas 1o Greater China, of
T00,000,000 new ordinary shares of China Gas.

As at March 31, 2002, the Group’s current ratio was 2.92 (3.31.2001;
2.19) and the gearing of the Group was 26.8% [3.31.2000: 2.1%).
Bank balance and cash amounted to appraximately HEK$7 1.6 miltion
13.37.200%: HK$24.4 million). The significant increase in gearing ratio
was mainly due to acquisition of subsidiaries during the year, The
improvement in the liquidity was mainly due to the net proceeds
received from the placement and share exchange of China Gas’s ordinary
shares and bank balance and cash of HKS47.1 million contributed by
the subsidiaries acquired during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
- continued

Material Acquisitions and disposal and future plans for material
investments

I January 2002, the CGroun completed the acquisition of iss investments
in Global Med Techrologies, Inc, (“Global Med”), Global Growth
Management Inc. (*Global Growth™) and eBanker LiSA.com, Inc.
(“eBanker”} with ac aggregate consideration which was satisfied by
reducing the amount of convertible debentures issued by eVision
Imerational, Inc., a principle asseciate of the Group, As at. March 31,
2002, the Group held an imterest of approximately 40.3% interest in
eBanker and an aggregate interest of approximately 58.4%. in Global
Med (compeising direct interest of 12.5% and an additional interest of
45.9% through eBankes).

During the year, the Group has deemed disposal of interests in China
Gas through the placement of shares of China Gas, resulting in the
dilution of the Group's helding frum 56.6% 10 52.9%. Details of future
investment plan and prospects for new business of the Group are
disclosed in the Chairman’s Statement.

Foreign Exchange Exposure

substantially all the revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are
denominated in Haong Kong dollars and United States doflars. The
Group's cash depasit and bank balances are mainly in eithes Hong
Kong Dollars or United States Dollars. During the same period, the
Group nelther engaged in any derivative activities nor committed to
any financial instruments-to hedge its balance sheet expasures.

Human Resources

Remuneration packages are generally structured by reference to market
1erms and individual qualifications. Salaries and wages are normally
reviewed on an anneal basis based on performance appraisals and
other relevant factors. At the balance sheel date, there were 70
employees employed by the Group. The Company operates & share
option scheme under which the Directors may, at their discretion, invite:
employees of the Company or its subsidlaries, including Directors.
take up options to-subscribe for shanes in the Company. The subscription
price and the exercisable peripd are determined in accordance with
prescribed feomula and terms.

Fledge of Assets

At the balance sheet date, the Group had pledged bank balances of
HK$4, 216,000 as a security for banking facilities granted to a subsidzary
and as security for the credit card business transactions with MasterCard
International Inc. The mortgage loans of HK$10,476,000 were secured
on the investment properties of the Group with an aggregate camying
valuve of HESTT.257,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
- continued

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had given a HK$3, 884,000 guaransee to a financial institation
in respect of banking facilities granted to subsidiaries and a guarantee
of approximately HKS5, 137,000 to a US associate for the dividend
payment on comvertible B-1 preferred stock

Actions were hrought by Pricerite Stores Limited and Pricerite Group
Limited {together referred 1o as *Pricerite”) respectively, against a
subsidiary of the Company, in respect of the alleged breach of
agreement, for damages which ane not quantified. in the opinion of the
directors; it is not praiticable at this stage to determing with certainty
the gutcome of the litigation.

Two former staff of a subsidiary of the Company issued writs against
the subsidiary claiming, for wrongful dismissal, approximately
HK§1,862,000, The directors are advised by the legal counsel of the
'szpa.ﬂr that it is unlikely that the former <afi will succeed in their
claims.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE

Brief biographical information of the directors and senior management
of the Group are as follows:

DIRECTORS

M. Chan Heng Fai, aged 57, is the Chairman and Managing Directar
of the Company. He has been a director since September, [552 and
was appointed as Chaizman and Managing Director in June, 1955, Mx.
Chan is resgionsible for overall business development of the Grogp. His
expenence and expertise are in the finance and banking sectors, He is
the spouse of Ms. Chan Yoke Keow,

Ms, Chan Yoke Keow, aged 53, has been a diractor of the Company
since January, 1992. She is résponsible for the g I adminisuration
and financial planning af the Group. She has over 20 years expesience
in financial management and administration. Ms. Chan b @ member of
the Hong Kong Securities institide, She is the spouse af Mr. Chan Heng
Fai,

Mis. Chan Sook fin, Mary-ann, aged 31, has been a director of the
Cempany since 1995, Ms. Chan is involved with the securities operations
and the development of Marketing for the Group. Ms. Chan has previoes
experience with one of the leading banks in Hong Kong whare she was
involved in sales and marketing as well as relationship management
for the Regional Securities office, Ms. Chan Ts the daughter of M.
Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keouw.

Me. Fomg Kwol len, aged 53, is a solicitor practising in Singapore, Mr,
Fong is a partner of a solicitars” firm in Singapore. Mr Fong was:
appointed as 2 non-executive director of the Company in May 1995,

Mt Ha Kee Chay, aged 45, is & fellow of the Chanered Association of
Certified Accosntants, a fellow of the Taxation Mstitute of Hong Keng
and an associzte of the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Mr. Ha
halds directorship in several public companies listed in Hong Kong.
Mr Hla was appoinied as a non-executive. director of the Company in
December 1994,

Mr. Waag Dor Luk, Peter; aged 60, his over 30 years” experience in
the fashion fndustry including distributien, sourcing, overseeing
manufactiring and exporting to international clients in France, the
United Kingdom, Germany and the United States.. Mr. Wong was
appointed as an independent non-executive director of the Company
in September 1398,

Mr. Les Ka Leung, Daniel, aged 43, is a Hong Kong cerified public
accountant admitted to practise in Hong Xong. He is a fellow of the
Chariéred Association of Certified Accountants-and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Sociery of Accountants. Mr Lee is currently the managing
pariner of K.L. Lee & Partners C.RA Limited and KLL Associates G‘FL
Limited. Mr. Lee was appointed as an indepepdent non-executive
dirrctor of the Campany in Cictober 1994,
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE - continued

Mr. Chan Tong Wan (Tony), aged 27, began his career by weorking in
two international compantes as an imvestment banker specializing in
Asian equity financial products. Subsequently. starting July 1999, Mr.
Chan has been working for a finance and technokogy company in the
United States as the Chief Gperating Officer with a focus in s
Investment banking and menchant banking activities. Mr. Chan joined
the Group as a non-executive director in January 2000 and is the son
of Mr. Chan Heng Fai and Ms. Chan Yoke Keow.

SEMIOR MANAGEMENT

Me. Chong You Hwa, aged 40, is the Information Technology Manager
of Online Credit Card Limited ("OCCL"} in charge of the information
technology and electronic data processing functions since October,
1996, Prior to joining OCCL, Mr, Chong had worked as Technical
Services Section Head for a credit card company in Malaysia for six
years. Mr. Chong has over 12 years system expesience in the credit
card inclustry,

Mr. Liew Tze Choaon, aged 45, is the Senior Manager-Operations of
OCCL, respansible for the Mew Accounts, Embossing, Authorization,
Fraud Control, Credit Conttol and Cellection. He has 18 years
experience in the credst card industry, Before joining OCCL, he worked
for a credit card company in Malaysia. He was seconded 1o jakarta,
Indonesia, for 2 years 1o set up Credit Card Center and subsequently
seconded to Hong Kong in 19%8 after completing his assigrment in
Jakarta:

M, Mg Hin Chay, aged 43, is the Administration Manager of the Group.
M. Mg is responsitile for the daily administration of the Group and
credil card operations of OCCL. Prior to joining the Group in March
1995, Mr. Ng has 13 years banking experience specializing in branch
accounting, credit administration and project financing in PRC.

Ms. Poon Man Yee, Alison, aged 45, is the Deputy General Manager of
OCCL in charge of the Sales and Marketing Department. She is an
experienced banker and a qualified accountant with & years audit
experience. Before joining OCCL in May 2000, she was one of the
founders and 1he compliance oificer of a fund management company.
She had worked as an implementation manager of the global cash
management business and as the relationship manager in the global
custady hisiness of international banks. She is a fellow member of the
Chartered Association of Centified Accountants and holds 2 diploma in
Miarketing and Inlermational Business.
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DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT PROFILE — continued

Abr. Wong Shui Yeung, aged 31, is the Financial Controlier of the Group
and responsible for the financial and management reporting of the
Group, including internal control and policy rewiew, taxation, auwdit,
legal and regutatory aftairs. He has over 9 years in public accounting,
taxation, and financial consultancy and 2 in Hong Kong.

Hie worked with an inteenational accounting firm peior o jeining the

Group in 2001, He holds a Bachelor Degree in Business Administration
and is a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He is an associate
member of the Hong Keng Sockety of Accountants and the Association
of infemnatiomal Accountands,

Mr. Yuen Ping Man, aged 38, i the Senior Manager-Corporate Services
of the Group responsible for the corporate secretarial function of the
Group and human resources, customer service and general
administration of XCCL. Prior to joining OCCL in [une 1997, Mr, Yaen
warked in two Heted groups and a financial institution for aver B years
in the administration,: hueman re es, company secrefarizl and legal
compliznce aréas. Mr Yoen is a fellow member of the Institute of
Charterad Secretaries and Administrators amd of the Hong Kong Imstitute
of Company Secretaries, and a member of the Hong Kong Securities
institute, the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Managemen: and
the Hong Kong Enstitute of Purchasing & Supply.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

NOTICE 1S HEREBY GIVEN THAT the Annual General Mesting of the
members of Heng Fung Holdings Limited (the “Company”l will be held
a1 Monaco Roem, B1, Regal Hongkong Hotel, 88 Yee Wo Sireet,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong on Tuesday, Augost 27, 2002 at 9:30 2.m,
for the following purposes--

ORDINARY BUSINESS
1.  To receive and adopt the audited consolidated financial

of the Company and the Reports of the Directors.and
the Auditors for the year ended March 31, 2002,

(=]

To consider the re-election of the retiring Directoss 2and to
authorize the: Board of Directors to fix the Directors’
remuneration,

i To consider (he re-zppointment of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as
Auditors of the Company and to authorize the Board of Directoss
to fix their remuneration.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

4. As special business, lo consider and., if thought fit,. pass the
following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution:-

THAT:

1] subject to paragraph {iii} below, pursuant 1o Secon 578
iof the Companies Orndinance, the exercise by the Disectars
of the Company during the Relevant Period las heseinafter
defined) of all the powers of the Company to allot, issue
and deal with addittomal shares in the capital of the
Compary and to make or grant offers, agreements and
options lincluding warrants, bonds and debentures
convertible ‘into shares of the Company) which might
require the exercise of such powers be and i hereby
generally z2nd unconditicnally approved;

il the approval in paragraph (il shall authorize the Drirectors
of the Company during the Reievant Period 1o make or
grant offess, agreements and options fincluding warrants,
bonds and debenture convertibie into shares of the
Companyh which might require ibe exercise of such powers
to aliot, isswe and deal with additsonal chares in the capital
of the Compamy after the end of the Rebevant Period;
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MOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING — continued

the aggregate nominal amount of share capita! allotted or
agreed conditionally: or unconditionally 1o be aitotted
[whether pursuant to-an option or atherwisel by the
Directors of the Company pursuant ta the approval in
paragraph (i), ctherwise than purstant to (a) a Rights Issue;
(b} an issue of shares of the Company upon the exercise
of rights of subseription or conversion under the terms of
ary warrants of the Company er any securities which are
convertible into shares of the Comipany; o (c) an issue of
shares of the Company as scrip dividends punsuant to the
anticles of association of the Company from time to time;
or [di an tssue of shares of the Company under any option
‘scheme or similar arrangement for the grant or issue to
employees of the Company andfor any of its subsidiaries
of shares of the Company, or rights 10 acquire shares of
the Companys, shall not exceed 20 per cent. of the
aggregate nominal amount of the share capital of the
Company in issug as 21 the date of the passing of this
resolution, and the said approval shall be limited
accoedingly;

for the purpose of this resolution—

“Refevant Periad” means the period from the passing of
this resolution until whichever is the eadiest of:—

the conclusion of the mext annual general meeting of the
Campany;

the expiration of the perfod within which the next annual
general mesting of the Company is required by any
applicable law of Hong Kong or the Company’s Articles
of Association 1a be heid; or

the authority set ot in this resolution being revoked or
varied by way of ardinary resoluticn of the Company in
general meeting.

“Rights lssae” means an offer of shares open for a period
fixed by the Directors of the Company 1o holders of shares
whose names appear on the register of members on a
fined record date in propostion 1o their then holdings of
such shares {subject to such exclusions or other
arcangements as the Directors of the Company may deem
necessary or expedient in relation 1o fractional entittements

or having regard 1o any restrictions or obligations wnder

the Taws of any relevant jurisdiction, or the reguirements
of any recegnized regulatony body or amy stock exchangel.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING — continued

vl the authorify conferred by this resolution shall be in
substitution for all previous authorities granted 1o the
Diirectoss of the Company, except that it shall be without
prejudice to and shall not affect the exercise of the power
of the Directors of the Compary pursuant te such
-authorities o allot additional shares of the Company up
to-and in accordance with the approval therein contained
peior to the date of this resalution.

By order of the Boand
Chan Sak King, Toe
Company Secretary

Hong Kong, July 26, 2002
Nodas:

1 A memibes entitled bo atsersd and vode at the abowe Meeting may appoint
one or mare prowies o altend and, on & poll, vote instead of himn. A
proocy need not be 2 memiber of the Camparsy,

= En order to be valid, a form of proay sogether with the power of anerney
oo other authonly (if any) under which it s sigred, or a4 ratary certified
copy thereol, mast be deposited’at the regrstered office of the Company
in any event noe less than 48 hours belooe the time appoimed for holding
the Meetog. Completion and neturm of 2 fom of prooy will not preclede
you freem atiending asd voding i persan if you are subsequently able ta
be presena.
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DIRECTORS" REPORT
The directors present their annual repont and the awdited fina ncial
statemenits for the year ended March 31, 2002.

CHANGE OF NAME

Pursuant 10 a special resolution passed at an extraordinary general
mesting held an October 16, 2001, the rame of the Company was
changed from Osline Credit International Limited to Heag Fung
Holdings Limited.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an inve t holding company and prou:'d!z-s
corporate management services to its subsidiaries. The activities of its
peincipal subsidiaries and associate are set out in notes 45 and 46
respectively fo the financial statements.

RESULTS

The results of the Groap for the year ended March 31, 2002 are set out
in the consolidated income statement on page 32.

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and the Compary during the
year ate sel out in-note 27 to the financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out on page 98.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

During the year, the Group acyuired, through acquisiti of a subsidiary,
investment property of HKSE 432,000 and disposed of investment
praperty of HE$387,000.

The Group's i it properties were revalued as at March 31, 2002,
as set out in note 13 to the financial statements. The resulting nel
deficit arising on revaluation which amounted to HKST 042000 has
heen charged directly to the consolidated income

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Movements in properly, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in note 14 5 the financial
slatements,

MAJOR PROPERTIES

Datails of the major properties of the Group at March 31, 2002 are set
out on pages 99 and 100
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DIRECTORS' REPORT - continwed

SHARE CAPITAL

Movements in the share capital of the Company are set out in notes 26
1o the fimancial statements,

BORROWINGS

Borrowings which are repayable within ohe year or on demand, are
classified as current liabilittes: A repayment analysis of bosrowings is
set out in note 28 1o the financial statements.

Nointerest was capitalised by the Group during the year.
DIRECTORS

The directors ol the Company during the year and up to the dase of this
report ane:

Executive directors

Chan Heng Fai
Chan Yoke Keow

Chan Sook fin, BMarny-ann
Nom-execulive directors

Chan Tong Wan

Fong Kwok Jen

Ha Kee Choy

Kamn Kwang Chan
Trapp Hobert Herman

fresigned on September 28, 2001}
fresigred on May 4, 2007)

Independent noa-executive directors

Lee ¥a Leung, Daniel
Wong Dor Luk, Peter

Abternate directors

Law Kwok Fai {alternate to Chan Heng Fai)
Wooldridgs Mark Dean {alternate to Fong Kwok fen)
Lau Man Tak

{alternate to Trapp Robert Herman)
iresigned on May 4, 2001)

In accordance with Amicies 78 and 79 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Messrs. Fong Kwok fen and Wong Dor Luk, Peter netire by
ratation and, being efigible, offer themselves foe re-elaction. The term
of office of each non-executive director and indepandent non-execitive
directoe s the period wp 10 his retirement by rotation and each one of
them can be re-appointed in accordance with the ahove anicles.
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DIRECTORS” REPORT - continued

DIRECTORS” INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

L

Shares

At March 37, 2002, the interests of the directars, chisf executives
and their associates in the shares of the Company as recorded in
the register maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 29
of the Securities (Disciosure of Interests) Ordinance of Hong

WEAREN -2

#ERERFZRE

i R

BT _SF=A=+—H.HZ
SHMYSRIER (HERED)
BRI TEEEDER) B2kl
RzBERFE -ZX-EThHA

¥ong fthe *SD Ordinance®) were as follaws: AARBSEZBEALRELR
FEREEHEIEEDT:
i The Company fin  AEEF
FizaEEA
Number of securities keld
L8t RAEE LEEE 31§ KREE
Personal Corparale Family Other
Name of dinechors interests mleresls interests Fnferesls
Chan Heng Fai RER TEATE 233 B.535,276 [sote 1) 305499334 (note 2F -
iEE Y IEEN
Chan Yoke Keow BRI 31,437,096 214328, 440 dnole 31 BOOVL53 inote 43 55,733,600 (note 5)
Wiy [ RS
Chan Seok in, REA 35,630 - 3,406,000 [nobe 6} =
Magy-arn (Wi
Fong Kwok Jen REN 3,828,000 = - -
Chan Tang Wan WEH 17612430 - - -
Woeg Dor Luk, Peter  E58 260,000 = = =
MNales: Rrit:

1 These shares are owned by Heng Fai China & Asia i EnRnaRERTE

tndustries Limited, 1o which dbe, Chan Heng Fai {"Mr. (TRES I HiN
Chan™) hasa bereficial insoresy, IENCEEEEAL

e
2 These shares zre owred by Mrs. Cham Yoke Koo ["Mni I BERRphREEEIE
Chan”l, the spouse of M. Chan, ﬂ!il:_ith"ﬂsk
+ i MH

These shares are owned by BPR Haldings (B0 inc. BFR
Holdings (Fas Eastl Limited, First Pacific Internatsonal
Lismited asd Primse Star Geowp Co. L8d., in which Mrs.
Chan has & beneficial inbenesz.

Thase chares are owned by Mr. Chan, the sgouse of Mas.
Chan

These shares 278 pwned by a discretionam st Bemvada

Trust [Sowth Paciic] Limited, Mrs. Chan is one of the

These shares are owned by Mr, Woaldridge Mark Dean,
the spowse of Ms. Chan Sook fin, Many-ann.

20

BE¥msapaiNE
88 FBPR Holdings
{8C) tme. - BPR
Holbdiegs {Far East)
Limized - First Pacilic
tnternational Lemited
Frame St Group Cou
1ol W -

EEahRLtIN
AREEwE-

BYyERR-ErER
& Bermuda  Trust
Seanh Facific] Lomited
AR TR
HErRRENE—-

EFmEAsERALT
Z KB Wooldridge
Mark Deanf 4 8 i~

DIRECTORS" REPORT - continued

DIRECTORS" INTERESTS IN SECURITIES ~ continued

(1) Shares - continwed

ti)  Shares in subsaduaries

Az March 31, 2002, the following directors held interest
in the shares of subsidiaries of the Company as follows:

{a}

ik

PeopleMed.com, Inc,

TFEEB

Name of directors

Chan Heng Fai mER
Chan Yoke Keow EEZEE
Chan Tong Wan BREW
Fomng Kwok fen EEy
China Gas Holdings Limited
HERR

Name of directors

Chan Heng Fai =EWN
Chan Yoke Keow EES
Chan Seak Jin, Mamy-ann mEA

Maopes:

K. These shares are cwmed by M. Chan Yoke Keow,
the spowse of Mr. Chan Heng Fai

-

These skiaies are owned by Mz Chan Heng Fal,
the spouse of Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow.

EFREEN-M

WwERELEZES -9
BRE-N

(1

i)

REERLTZRE

LHTESR _—_S22_&5-8§
Et—HEEXRaNES
ARRpESEET:

fa) PeopleMed.com,

HEREREY

Mumber of ordinary shares held

HAEE
Personal
interests

AEEL
Family
interests

100, 000 =
- 100,000 (node 2}

I E2]

25,000 =
25,000 -

b FREAERTRD

]
HHEREREN
Mumber of ardinary sh held
HAEL EBEE
Personal H
interests interests
3,136,000 3,036,000 tNote 1)
iR
3,136,000 3,136,000 (Mote 2)
[1.; ¢ L34]
500,000 -
RidE:
[ ESREaR
EHELZRE
LLES 5 &5
ni-
2. EEEman
IR xR
BERENET
e 2
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN SECURITIES — continued

4]

Options

Pursuant to the Company’s shaie option scheme (the “Schema”)
was adopted pursuant a reselution passed on September 28,
1995 for the purpose of providing incentive to directors and
eligible employees, and will expire on September 27, 2003.
Under the Scheme, the board of directors of the Company may
grant options. to executive directors and employess of the
Comgpany and fts subsidizries to subscribe for ordinary shares in
the Company, at a peice not less than 50%% of the average closing
price of the Company's shares on the five trading days
immediztely preceding the offer of the options or the nominal
walue of the shares whichever is the higher

At March 31, 2002, the number of shares in r=spect of which
options had been granted onder the Scheme was 79,471,738,
representing 6.3% of the shares of the Company in issue at that
date. The maximum number of shares in respect of which opticas
may be granted under the Scheme in such number of shares
which, when aggregated with any shares subject fo any othar
share optien schemes, represents 10% of the issued shares. of
the Comparry from time to time, Mo ipdividuals may be granted
opticns which would enable him or her to subscribe for an
aggregate of more than 25% of the aggregate number of share
for the time being issued and issuable under the Scheme. Upon
acceplance of oplien, the grantee shall pay HKS1 10 the Company
as consideration. The options granted were exercisable dusing
the 1en year period commencing after the cate on which the

options were accephed.

WwEFHREE -2

WPEREFZRE -

(2

BEESS

BRELAAREREERA S

BAER-—RARSFAEBEC-TA
AERRRERAIREETM
(TE#EN B —FTFI5h
A-ttEES - ELAEER
AEELAREBELS S ZRAT
FELAEAREARE ERY
HEFER-ERESRIRALD
EROATENBEREAAE
REER Bz TaRHNeo%in
RES RS ERE) -

e -_F=H={—G-BH#
ENFFELRRR: FHEEE
BERRresr 30R IEELER
EACERREZe I - BN
ESERimMEETZR - RnE
HRgETEERREANTE
ErRfREAELFALRRECSR
FRRZIN - ELEIFaEEN
AtRATHEAHHSERER
ERBTZE raTRG2RR
sRElrERE-ERRRES
FE-AR ANELRTEHIE
mrfFERA-FREZMREH
EREERERAFES 58
e fid
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2] Options — conlinued

HEAREE-=

2) MR -m

The following table discioses mo in the Company’s share TEESALIRBERS/RE
options during the year: SRWE-
BEEREN
Number of optien shares
# #
“3Y-¥ TR
EYRS EAnR TFHEAR e RA-R SRER =H=H-0
Lapsed
Evescise M duriag Al
Name of director Date gramted  Evencisable period price 41200 the year 313,002
His
Categery 12 Dinectors  BIM=EW
Chas Fierg Fal EES 37 1995 4,31.1996 -4 21,7008 02505 1,008, 000 = 1,000,000
5459857 5.15.9597 - 5042007 BASIY  BEA0000 650,000
16161547 H0:16.0997 - §0ESI00T 03068 12400000 = 14.E00,000
Chan Yoke Keow REE £27 399 4271996 - 4212006 s LTINS = LB
5053997 SUR1ET - 5 182007 DA5I2 6, BE0.000 = 660,000
10265557 0260957 — 10L25. 2007 I 1840000 = 14,800,000
Chan S0k fin, L5 ¢ 0268957 1B2E.1997 - 10252007 W30s  25,0000000 - 25,000,080
Masy-zn
Trapp Robet Herman Teapp Biobet  RI509%7 SRS HNT - 5043007 04332 ER00 - 80,000
Hermean 10251957 T0.DE1997 - 1252007 DA0ES  T.000/000 = 7000008
Eau Mhas Tak (aptel ek 11 HIRER L 55197 - 5142007 04512 20000000  (2.000.000H -
K026.1997 1026 1497 = 025 20007 D306 1506000 (1.500,0005 -
Teta! directons j 2513 BLETTI® L0000 THETILTIE
Cabegory 2 - Emplovees W20 HH
Totad empleyees LR 5150857 551497 - L2007 [ 1,300,000 = 1.300,000
Toeal all cavegocies L BEL BLATLTYY.  BS0000T  TRATILTIY

MNote:' The shase oplioe granted 10 M. Lau Man Tak was Lipsed on June
3, 2001 following his resignaficn &s direcior of the Company

with efiect on May 42001,

No share ogtion was granted or exencised during the year.

Consideration of HK$1 was received from each of the option
holiders, at the time that the opiions were accepted.

Wit MFHIEESIMBRERR
BoFF-ERAMBERE
AR -MAR_RE—
FAES AR

FRESEREERHRGE-

fMEEnAEEREERER
ERMERSE AGR-.



DIRECTORS' REPORT - continued

[ 4]

Options — conlinued

oy addition, the following outstanding oplions to subscribe for
chares in the capital of the subsidiary of the Company, granted
ro certain directors of the Company under the share oplion
scheme of the subsidiaries are as follows:

L]

China Gas Holtings Limited (FCGHL")

Under the tesms of the Share Opticn Scheme (the
“Scheme”) which became effective on October 2, 1995
foor the peimary purpose of providing incentive to direciors
and eligible employees, and will expire 10 years after the
date of adeption. The board of directors of COHL may
offer to any directors or full time employees of the CGHL,
or any of its subsidiaries, options to subscribe for shares
in CGHL at 2 price equal to the higher of the nominal
valize of the shares and 80 par cent, of the average of the
chosing prices of the shares an the Stock Exchange on the
five trading days immediziely preceding the date of the
grant of the options, subject 10 2 maxvimum of 10 per
cents. of the issued share capital of CGHL fram fime 0
time, Mo employee may be granted options which wotld
enable him or her to subscribe for an aggregate of more
than 25 per cent. of the aggregale mumber of shares under
the Schems, Uipon acceptance of option, the grantee shall
pay HES$1 to CGHL as consiceration.

The following table discloses mavements in the COGHLs
share option during the year:

EE1 34 sanE §FHEmm

N of direcier Dateof ganl  Fvercisable peried

(Chan Heng Fl HEH 210754 2101998 - 152008

Chan Yoke Keow  BER 210938 2101998 - 2.9.2008

Chan Saak [in, BEA L0163 201558 - 252008
Mary-aen

L Mam Tak FEE Lmsse 2H0F99 - 292008

The weighted average closing price of CGHLS shares
immediately before the dates cn which the opticns were
exwercised was HES0.46.

Mo share option of CGHL was granted dusing the year.

HEFABREN -2

121

MBS -

SR A BT R R R SR A E]
RERZERZAXTERRE
DEEHELECMEETRAR
FREAETES EWOT:

B

]
pot. & 221 St £ el 4
Hi—R

4.1.2001

PHBRHERARSS
(M MR RER])

BEZERRRETFRSH
BEAAR—ALESHA
—EEWrEEERH
[TEsH) IR ERE
EESFICEEN) 28
TRSSHnESEEaT
BEEERSAEERED
HrEEERELRE AR
HEEE - LEWmEEES
BESSR RAHCRTSS
sz RE ERABRS
SRS RERRESHE
BRAETEERBERER
B £ #7018 S B0 {2
ERZLM) EATRE
HEATERRANETR
BrEMEIsuE L ME
M-EhMREERE
BAMRTREREEREH
TR,

TEEETHRREEERRSR
ENTRZBREH:

BREwE
“amber ol share optisas
B

R ZR=1—0
fuencised

u during M
theyear 3312002

LITA000 (336001 =

INHO0N (3.136,000 =

L300000 (50000 1,000,000

1500000 11500,000) -

O7L000  (RITTOGO) 1,000,000
FREMERIRERRE
ARERTRERSIDE
FHNTRALLET.
FEEEERREREER
o R .

—

DIRECTORS" REPORT - continued

(2]

Options - continued
(@)  eBanker USA.com, Inc,

In fancary 1999, the board of directors of eBanker USAC
com, lnc. (*eBanker”) authorised the eBanker 1599
Incentive and Momnst Stock Option Plan, with
effective from fanuagy 18, 1999 through fanuary 17, 2009,
wnless sooner termanated. The eBanker’s board of directors
grambed to certain eBanker's directors, options to purchase
620,000 shares of eBankers common stock at U5§3.00
per share, exercisable immediately and for a pemod of
ben years,

The following tzble presents the activity for options
ing as of March 31, 2002:

Category 1: Directors Wom: e
Chan Heng Fai pEE

Fong Kwok Jen L 441
Category 2: Employees Wes:MH
Total employees EFEan
Toral all categories E= 3 -5 8

The following table presants the composition of options
oulstanding and exercisable as of March 31, 2002:

HEGTERRE
Dpltions
wH L8
Amounl Price*
5§
Towad March 35, 2000 RIFECE
=R=%—8
Z2m 620,000 3.0
' Price and life reflect the weighted average exercise price
and weighted average srematning comtractual lide,

e tivedy.

WEAEREN -
2 MEEN -5
fii} eBanker USA.com, Inc.

eBanker USA.com, Inc.
{leBanker]) WEHH—H
LASF—HEBelanker
1B EFETRES
S EEBAs - LE
-BE+tABE—SThE—
A+tER |(BEEREEL) .
eBankerE A E T
eBankeEFHERAE -
LEBRInRzrsai-m
H 620,000% eBanker® &
E-EEERATESR
E-HERETE.

FREMBE_TT_§=
A=t+—HEFTERERE
ZREWE:

ZE¥¥-F=H=+-R

mEEER
Number of share options
al 3.31.2002

500,000
100,000

600,000

20,000

620,000

THRENBE—"SS ==
A=t—HB&axiTERTF
fEmER 2o

FFiRRER
Evencisable Oplions

wn "E i
Lige* ;

& pears®

Amooni Price®

uss

620,000 3.00

' mEEERFHENE
FETRENARETS
ZWRTEHER.
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(2}  Options - continwed

i

eBanker USA.com, Inc.

There was no movement in share options granted By
eBanker during the year,

Global Med Technologies, Inc.

in the second quaster of 2001, Global Med Technologies,
fne, (“Global Med®) adopted the 2001 Steck Option Plan
2007 Plan*}. The 2007 Plan provides for the issyance of
options to purchase up to 15 million registered shares of
the Global Med's common stock: to-employees, officers,
directors and consultants of the Global Med. Optioas may
be granted as incentive stock oplions of as nongualified
stock op Omily employess of Global Med are eligible
10 recerve Incentive Options. The 2001 Plan expires on
December 28, 2010. As of March 31, 2002, options o
purchase 80,000 shares of the Global Med's common sbock
2% 2 weighted average exercise price of UISS0.96 per share
through 2001 were outstanding under the 2001 Plan, of
which 14,000 options fo purchase shares were exercisable

The Second Amended and Restzted Stock Cption Plan
[*Plan”) provides for the issuance of options to purchase
up to 2.2 million registered shares of the Global Med’
common stock to emplovees, officers, director and
consultants of Giobal Med. Options may be granied as
incentive stock or a5 nongualified stock options. Qnly
emplovees of Global Mad are eligible to receive Incentive
Oiptions. The Plan expired on May 31, 2000 As of Manch
31, 2002, options to purchase 1.251 million shares of the
Global Mads common stock 2t ‘2 weighted average
exercise price of LIS§1.14 per share were outstanding
under the Plan, of which 985,000 opticns to purchase
shares were exerrisable.

Glotal Med also periodically grants options to purchase
shares of restricted common stock. The shares underiying
these oplions are not registered under the Exchange Act
1933. At of March 33, 2002, there were options Lo
perchase 4.927 million shares of common stock at a
weighted average exercise price of U5§0.96 ouistanding,
of which 1.978 million were exercisable a1 March 31,
2002,

WEHREE-—=

2] MEREHH-@

(id]

eBanker USA.com, Inc.

eBanker PR U X MRER
EREEEFRES.

Global Med
Technologies, Inc.

Global Med Techaologies.
Fnc. | [Global Med] | B —
2R ER -SRR-ET
—EREEITH ([20015F
B -BEEro0 EE N
H%&  Global MedZ & R -
EGRA-EPRENAHE
BT BERERRE S
15,000,000 A ERERR
fromRETL R ERE
EXTENTARARER
th« B H Global Med:x i &
FEEEZRBERRE-
ETNE - —%F
+oBE-FABRE-RE
¥ _S=H=+—8-
BEnuESHTERE
FHFREERLETR
A Global Med BO,000E F
ERARERYE_TF
—EE# iy B
B4 - O B8 B AR B 14,0006
MmERETE.

Global Med® S8 — 5
HETRENIBEREH
TP BSHREE 1
RA-ASRO-EERE
FAaESTMEERNE
% 2,200,0005 Global Med
TEREERR - WAEET

i
HEraREsEhE-R”
BEIN TRESRL
%Eﬁ.s,l}uﬂﬂ-nﬁtilfﬁ

Global Medifs £ BT
RESEMEESZAR
B-ASEEELERER
SERE-NWN==—HFXRE
HERBR-BE_E%_%
ZHEt+—HF-TERET
BRERSRsETRA
4927 (OESER 2 ME
B ®ir K+
1978000 RERR —F
F_S=RA=+—-B9Ff

.

DIRECTORS" REPORT — continued

Oplions — canlineed

fiii)  Global Med Technalogies, Inc. - continsed

In the second quarter of 2001, Global Med amended the
1997 Stock Compensation Plan. The amended 1997 Stock
Compensation Plan provides for the issuance of up 1o ]
million registered shares of the Global Med's common
s1ock to employees, consultants and others involved in
Global Med's business. A 1ozl of 200,000 shares of
common stock of Global Med have been issued under the
stock compensation plan as of March 31, 2002.

The followings table presents the activity for options for
the years endad as of March 312

Mame of Director WHEAR
Chan Heng Fai REH

Chan Tong Wan P r

Fong Kwak fen EEE
Outstanding, beginning of year FReETRE

Granted BEY
Foreitedicancelled B i R

Cutstanding, end of year EaEETE

Price eflects the weighted average exsrgics price.

No options were granted 1o the Global Med's Executive Officers
during the year ended March 31, 2002.

There was no option exercise during the year.

& 8-8 B
(2) MEEEM -
fii}] Gloebal Med

Technologies. Inc.

Global Medit —F2—&
E_Fgr—Ah-tsae
SR H-EEEET 0
htERBEREN Ta
ER-EMAEARESER
Global MedER XA+ 8
1 8 £ 1,000,0005 Globkal

MediREERG-BE—
T2 _F=F=+-B9
£ 200,000 8 Global Med
RaRaERGEESHE
.
TEERBRE=A=+—8
HETERREZR2EW
0=
|- S 2
EH=4—RZ
muEsER
MNumber of
fiem share oplions
Exercise price’ at 3.31.2002
Uss
o.78 250,000
(18273 50,000
0.78 150,000
REiE e
Options Price”
uss
6,336,971 0.85
14,000 064
17 13,004 LR
6. 257,971 0.85
. BRSREETHEEN
-

BE—SE_S£=A=+-—81
FE B3 S m Global Med 2 B FF
BEESLERR-.

FRESTHRREETE-
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{2} Options — continued (20 TRELEEAS -
iy krvologh = d [T Giobal Med
fiiiy  Global Med Tec ghes, Inc, - ¢ (iii) = obal =
The following table presemts the composition of options THEFMBREZ _RT-5=
aubsl!an:i:g agnd exarcisable 25 of March 31, 2002: E=+—BE£HERTT
FREEEEINE:
] ET{iERES ) )
REHERE Optons Oulstanding Exercisable Options
fiemEn o i R *m !i
Range of evercise price Amouml Price” Life* Amount Prioe*
=g us§ uss
- 5,312,958 .68 7.5 2,185,312 073
?ﬁ: 5 ::gg 297,500 iz 70 104500 13
157 =200 420,573 1.73 4 J4LETS 1.6
245300 203,000 s 57 11,000 15‘11
375 13,5700 175 5.0 13,200 .75
Torad Manch 31, RoFE_E
2002 =H=+—-8
Zan 5257971 0.85 74 L97RI05 1.0
- i fife seflect the weighted EXPCESE paiCe ¥ MAEERGHEERE
:‘r:e-::digh:fd .;-:e:agp zmm::;ﬁ:i::ranaa: life, ;EEE?QE!F;!*R
respecively, (] »
Onher disclosed above, at no time during the year was BEiFTHREEER RO RN
the C;ﬁ:aa:'r -:' any of its subsidiaries a parly to any EEEATIRENTHERNE
arrangements to enable the directors of the Company to acquire EETTEETE dEXLAEE
Benedits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures B R E S R
of, the Company or 2ry other body corporate and neither the HE BRSO sEEN -5
directars nor the chief executives, nor any of their spouses or FHARSEEESZEE S5
children under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the EBUHFrXFAEEFABAZR
tecurities of the Company, or had exercised any such rights x4 E_ﬁ#.gp;;;;&ggg!
during the year. HEITHE
DIRECTORS® SERVICE CONTRACTS WEZEHTH
ik Cin Movember 9, 1998, a senvice contract (“Service Contract™)  (j) B—hAnE+—BLE . &5

entered inte between the Company and Mr. Ch.an, for-a
:;::1 of five years expiring on January 33, 2002, terminable by
M. Chan on 180 days’ notice. The tenms of this Service Contract
are deemed 1o have taken effect on February 1. 1997, On
Movember 25, 2000, 2 supplementary agreement was esgie!\ed
into between the ny and Mr. Chan for the extension of
the Service Contract for a period of three years expiring on

January 31, 2005.

Commencing from February 1, 19%8 and ep fo January 31, 2005,
the Sedvice %:urmam provides for the payment of a salary of the
greater of (i) an anaual salary equal to 5.9% of the net assets
value of the Company shown in its consolidated sudited accounts
at sach financial year end of the Company, and §il 161% of the
basic salany for the peried from February 1. 1997 to Janvary 31,
1998. In addition, Mr. Chan is also entitled 1o receive an
ace datiom all nce of Eﬁﬂiﬂ.m&permumh.
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BELH([BRE4NH] R_F
F_G—R=t—ARE ERT
ERHIBE T EEERT S8
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EEBR- BEBLNER=T-
ERT_TRES—E=1—8
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DIRECTORS SERVICE CONTRACTS - continsed

in the event that the. Company should Mr. Chan's
employment following the change of control of the Company, as
defined in the Service Contract, or for any reasons not specifically
excluded in the Service Conract. My, Chan shall be entitied to
receive as liquidated damages a lump sum equal to the sum
which would have been pa:raﬁeirr the Company as gross salary
in respect of the unexpired term of the Service Contract on the
date notice of termination is given_

A service contract (the “Service Contract with Mrs. Chan”] was
entered into between the Company and Mrs. Chan, for & tesm of
five years commencing February 1, 1997, and expiring on
February 1, 2002, terminable by srs. Chan on 189 days’ notice,
The service comract with Mes. Chan provides for the payment of
& basic salary of HK$88,000 per month, together with an
2dditional amount equal to one month's salary payable in
T«ebruart of each year. The basic salzry is to be revised on an
annual basis by not fess than 10% per year. In addition 1o the
basic salary, Mrs. Chan shall be entitled to receive an
accommodation allowance of HK$30,000 per manth. In the event
ihat the Company should terminate Mrs. Chan's employment
following a change of contred of the Company as defined in the
service contract with Mrs. Chan, or for any reasons not
specifically excluded in the service contract with Mrs. Chan,
Mrs: Chan shall be entitled 10 receive as liquidated dam

lump sum equal to the sum which would have been e by
the Company as gross salary in respect of the unexpired term of
the service contract with Mrs. Chan on the date motice of
termination is. given.

A supplementary agreement fo the service contract with Mrs.
Chan has been entered into between the Company and Mrs,
Chan in substitation for warious terms of the service contract
with Mrs. Chan, The suppiementary agreement provides for the

ent of 3 salary of the greater of (i) an anoual salary equal
1o 1% of the net assets value of the Company shown in its
consolidated audited accounts at each financial year end of the
Company, or (i) T10% of the basic salary 25 mentioned i the
service contract with Mrs. Chan with affect from February 1,
To98,

On April 22, 2002, a new service contract was enlered into
between the Company and Mes. Chan, for a term of five vears
expiring on February 1. 2007, The terms of this service contract
are deemed to have taken efiect on February 1, 2002, The contract
provides for the payment of a salary terms same as the
supplementary agreement. In addition, Mrs. Chan is also entitled
to receive an accommodation allowance of HX$30,000 per
month. In the event that the Company should - imate Mrs,
Chan’s employment following the change of control of the
Campany, as defined in the service contract, ‘or for any reasons
nat specifically excluded in the service contract, Mrs. Chan shall
e entitled 1o receive as liquidated damages a lump sum equal
o the sum which would have been by the Company as
gross salary in respect of the unexpired term of the service
contract on the date on which notice of termination is given.

Oiker than as disclosed above, none of the directors has a service
contract with the Company which is not detferminable by the
Company within one pear. without payment of compensation,
other than statusory compensation.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS AND COMNNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Other than certain transactions as disclosed in note 43 to the financizl
statements, no oiher contract of significance 1o which the Company or
any of its sybsidiaries was a parly and in which a director a{ the
Comgpany had 2 material interest, whesher directly o indirectly, subsisted
at the end of the year or 2t any fime during the year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

Other than the interests disclosed above in respect of certain direciors
and chief executives of the Company, the register of substantial
shareholders d by the Company pursuant to Seclion 1611 of
the SD1 Ordirance disclosed no other person as having an inerest of
10% or more in the fssced share capital of the Company 2s at March
31,2002,

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
For the year ended March 31, 2002, the aggregate amounit of turmoves

and punchases stiributable 1o the Group’s five largest customers and
suppliers respectively accounted for fess than 30% of the Group's total

rurower and purchases.
PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of the significant post balance sheed events-are set.out in note
44 to the financial statements.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has complied throughout the year ended March 31, 2002
with the Code of Best Practice s set out in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities an The Stock Exchange of Hang
Kang Limited.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be subimitted 1o the annual genesal meeling 1o re-
appaint Messrs. Deloite Touche Tohmaisu as auditors of the Company.

On behali of the Board

CHAN HENG FAI
CHAIRMAN - AND MANAGING DIRECTOR

lisly 26, 2002
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF HENG FUNG HOLDINGS LIMITED
R MRS

[FORMERLY KNOWMN AS OMLINE CREDIT INTERNATIHONAL LIMITED
IO REREARES)

lncorporated in Hong Kong with Fimited liability)

We have audited the financeal statements on pages 32 to 97 which
have been psepared in ztcordance with accounting principles generzliy
accepted in Hong Kong.

Respective responsibilities of directors and awditors

The Companies Ordinance sequires the deirectors to prepare financial
statements which give a true-and fair view. In preparing financial
statements which give 2 true and fair view it is fundamental that
appeopriate accounting policies are selected and zpplied consistenly.

it is our responsibility to form ap independent opinion, based on owr
awdit, on those statements and 10 réper our opinion 1o you.

Basis of opinion

We conducted our audit in 2ccordance with Statements of Awditing
Standards issued by the Horg Kong Society of Accountants. An: audil
incledes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the
amounts and disclosares in the financial staternents, R also includes an
assessenent of the significant estimates and judg made by the
directors in the preparation of the financial statements, and of whether
the accounting pelicies are appropriate 10 the circumstances of the
Commgpany and the Groug, consistently applied and adeguately disciosed

We planned and performed our audit-so as to oldain all the nformation
and explanations which we considered necessary in order 1o provide
us with sufficient evidence 1o give reasonable asswrance as to whether
the financial statements are free from matenial misstarensent. Tn forming
our opinion we zlso svaluated the overall adequacy of the presentation
of information in the financial staterments. \We befieve that cur audit
provides a reasonzble basis for our opinion.

Orpinion

I our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and the Group as at March 31, 2002
and of the loss and cash flows of the Group for the year then ended

and hawe been properly prepared in 2ccordance with the Companies
Ordinance,

July 26, 2002

BEE®REN

Deloitte
Touche
Tohmatsu
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COMSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

Turnower
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other operating income

Distribution costs

Administrative expenses

Oaher operating expenses B

Met lass on investments in securities
and properties

impairment loss recogrised in
respect of goodwill

Provision for guarenteed liabilities

Loss from operations

Finance costs

Impairment foss recognised in respect
of interess i/ amount due from
an associate

Gain on deemed disposal of a subsidiary

Loss before taxation
Taxation

Net loss before mingsity interests
Minority inienests
et lass for the year

Loss per share — basic and diluted
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MNotes 2002 2001
HKS$ 000 HKS'000
4 B0, 685 67,621
(33,5561 [35,745)
27,129 31,876
6 £,335 12,867
7231 3,117
67,872} 167,790
(4834 {2,058
7 (3 ek 1) (57,8471
128,5%98) -
{4,8851 -
a 71,607 (86,0491
g 6,925} 19,063)
412} 15,3271
30,964 -
147,980 {100,435}
] &% B0
(4T B91) o, B2
8,183 -
139, 7048) 199,829)
12 (3.73 cemtskl) (787 centsiiy

BALANCE SHEETS
AT MARCH 37, 2002

Assets

Non-Current Assels
Investment properties

Property, plant and equipmend
Goadwill

Intangible assets
Investments in subsidiznes
Intecests m assaciates
Inwestments: in secuities

Amecunts dee from subsadiaries

Loans receivable - due after
one year

Pledged bank deprsits

Currenl Assets

lewentories

Properties held ios s2le

Trade and other receivables

Amounts due from associates

Loans recervable - dus within
one year

Imvestments in securities.

Fledged bank deposits

Bank balances and cash

Todal Assets
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Lt THE GROUP THE COMPANY
NOTES 1002 2001 1002 2001
HK$"000 HKS' 000 HKS$ 000 HKS 000
| &4
RERKR
-k F 13 25,748 18,755 = 2
BE-RERRS 4 TOHO00 75,596 445 620
=R 5 26,45 - - =
BEHE 6 5293 - - =
PERLAIRR ¥ - - 85,600 B3,600
RERELSZINES 8 - - - =
ERAE 19 7587 34,599 3883 3,883
EELEXE 10 - - 87,682 105,661
Easl- 58
#HE b3 632 5218 = =
CEFRATER 4 4,216 4,023 = =
140,935 13819 177,631 195,764
E WA
FH 2 420 309 - 5
HHESAREZRE 79 i 75 b ]
HERHSERNE 24 118,350 141,608 4,958 4926
BEDANE 5 13 18% 13 2
BUEX-——FR
HE n 1,776 K Ui = =
EEET 19 46.TTS 11,403 4 7
CERBAFR 41 - 1051 = —
BiisRER2 71,632 24412 5,269 7,920
231,585 180,073 10,323 12,993
HERA 372,924 318,270 187,934 208,763




BALANCE SHEETS - continued

AT MARCH 371, 2002

Equity And Liahilities

Capital And Reserves
Share czpital
Reserves

Mimority Enterests

Non-Current Liabilities

Barrowings

Coovestibfie deberitures

Obligations under finance
leases

Amaunts due b0 associabes

Amounts due 10 subsidazries

Defesred taxation

Currenl Liahilities

Trade and other payzbles

Amount due to an assacizte

Baorrowings

Obligations under finance
lases

Taxatson

Total Equity And Liabilities
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THE GROUP THE COMPANY

2002 2001 2002 2001
HES'000  HKS'®00  HKS'00R  HKS000
317,020 1709 317,009 317,029
{28,262 BT.a14) (1616801 (136230
228,767 239,105 155,339 180,779
1,965 = - _
9,988 2,402 = =
49,297 = - =
730 - - —
1,679 1.679 1,364 1,364

= = 24913 23,577

1014 1,014 = -
62,708 7,085 76,277 24,948
77,198 36,785 6318 37
1,083 44,470 E =
488 428 = 26

(a3 = - _

38 377 = E
79,480 82,060 6,318 3.043
372920 318270 187,934 208,763

The financial statements on pages 32 1o 97 were approved and autherised for Bsswe by the Board of Directors on
fuly 26, 2002 and are signed on ils bebalf by
BLEERT AR B R ST F LA S TARA S FEE RN - SATHENREEN

Chan Heng Fai
D¥irector

mES
£

Chan Yole Keow

Diirector
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

Exchange differences arising on
translation of overseas operations
nat recognised in the consalidated
income’ statemant

meel loss for the year

Totz| recognised losses

Eliminated against goodwill resenve
arising on acquisition of additional
interest in a subsidiary

Credited to goodwill reserve arising on
acquisition:of subsidiaries
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE ¥EAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

WET CASH OUTFLOW FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES

RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND
SERVICING OF FINANCE

Interest paid

Interest received

MET CASH INFLOW FROM RETURNS ON
INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF
FINAMNCE

TAXATION
Fong Kong Profs Tax paid
DOrverseas tax paid

TAX PAID

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of subsidiasies (net of cash
and cash equivalens acquired|

Acguisition of additional interest ina
sulsidiany

Purchase of property, plant and
equigsment

Advance to an associate

Proceeds from disposal of property,
plant 2nd equipment

Proceeds from disposal of imestment
properties

Decrease in loan receivable

Diecrease in pledged bank deposits

MET CASH INELOW FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
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FINANCING

(HE i) F

2002 2001
HKS006 HES"000
113,861} 52012
LFB5) 1563}
TR 3,477
519 2,914
(104} [RES]
(126} -
123 (103
41,127 8,773
- (2400
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376 7,705

272 2
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42,315 10,392
28,743 |48,809)

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT — continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2042

FINANCING

Procesds from issue of ordinary shares

Contribution from minority sharehodders
of a subsidiary

Repayment of notes payable

Repayment of mortgage loans

Mew mortgage loans rzised

NET CASH INFLOAW (OUTFLOW) FROM
FINAMCING

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH BQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINMNING OF THE YEAR

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
END OF THE YEAR !

AMALYSIS OF THE BALAMCES OF
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash

Bank overdrafts
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

GEMERAL

The Company is-a public limited company incorporated in Hoag
Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™),

The Company acts as an investment holding company and
provides corporate management services la its subsidiaries. lis
subsidiaries are principally engaged in investment holding,
property invesiment and develgpment, financial and securities
inwestment -and credit cand business.

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING
PRACTICEACHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

In tkie curcent yeas, the Group has adopted a number of new
and revised Statements of Standard Accounting Practics ("SSAPS"]
tssued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants. Adogiien of
shese Standards has fed to @ number of changes in the Group's
secouming policies. The revised accounting policies are set out
in nose 3. In addition. these SSAPs have introduced additional
and revised disclosure requirements which have been adopted
in these finamcial slatements. Comparative amounts amd
disclosures for the prios year have been restated in order to
achieve a consistent presentaticen.

The adoption of these S8APs has sesulted in the foflowing charges
1o the Group’s 2ccounting palicies that have zffected the amaounts
and disclosares reported for the current or prioe periods.

Leases

In accordance with 5SAP 14 (Revised) “Leases”, the basis of
recognition of finance income from finance leases has been
changed from the net cash investment method to the net
irvestment method. Finance lease income is therefore allocated
to accounting periods 50 35 to reflect a Constant periodic rate of
veturn on the Group's net invesiment outstanding in respect of
its finance leases. Disclosure for the Group's operating ieasing
arrangesments has been modified so 25 to comply with the new
requirements of SSAF 14 [Revised), Comparative amounts and
disclosures have been restated to achieve a consistent

presentation,

The adoption of SSAP 14 (Revised! has not resulted in any
significant changes in amuunts reported for the current or prioe
periods and accordingly, no prier period adjustment has been
required.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

n

ADOPTION OF STATEMENTS OF STANDARD ACCOUNTING 2.

PRACTICE/CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Segment reporting

fn the current year the Group has changed the basis of
fdentification of repartable’ segs s to that required by SSAP
26 “Segment reparting”. Segr discl for the year ended
March 31, 2001 have been amended so that they are presented
on a consistent basis,

Goodwill

In the current year, the Group kas adopted S5SAF 30 “Business
combinatiens” and has elecied pot to restate goodwill (negative
zoodwiil) previcusly eliminated against (credited ol reserves.
Mccordingly, goedwill arsing an acquisitions prior to March 31,
2001 is held in reserves and will be charged to the income
stztemnent at 1he time of dispoesal of the relevant subsidiary, or at
such time as the goodwill is determined to be impaired. Negative
goodwill anising on acquisitions prior 10 March 31, 2001 will be
credited 1o income at the time of disposal of the relevam
substdiary or associate.

Goodwill arising on atquisitions after March 3T, 2007 is
capitalised and amorised over its estimated usefud life. Negative
goadwill arising on acquisitions after March 31, 2001 s presented
as a deduction from assezs and will be released o income based

on an Iysis of the circ es from which the balance
resulted.
Impairment of assets

SSAP 31 “Impairmens of Assets” is effective for periods beginnimg
on or after lanuary 1, 2001 and has inwedeced a formal
framework for the recognition of fmpairment lesses in respect of
the Group's assets. Although in prioe years, 1he Group complied
with the requirements of specific Accounting Standards in respect
of impai fosses, the intraduction of S5AP 31 has required a
re-estimation of the recoverabie amount of goodwill arising on
acquisition of subsidiary and associate, resulting in’ the
identification of additional impairment losses at March 35, 2002
amouniing to HKS28.89%,000. These additional imipaimment losses
have heen recognised in full in the current year.

Rl -.
BE-RTE=H=F—HE%R

RS B OB RNyt B
zHH-a

TEEH

HER AREERBRARAGES
o M- {2 2 Os5AP 26T
ERIZRERE_FF—%F=
BE=+—BEhEFErH#SRES
BT HERE—=-

L

REF - XEMERSAPIOTER
aR-EERSRRENHEE
AlEgrasR AR ERN-B
o2 —E=A=t+-E%R
aEEEczEenEREE
RN B EMERLRES @
ETmEexTHESER SRS
B-—FF—S=A=1+—H®H
HRESEZAERRAHES
EHELARRRELARF AN
‘j.'.

—EF-FE=A=1-BHER
BESEXMENSERERA
HEHAARSCHBETLSR
H_FTE—F=H=T—-HER
HRAEEZATENAERS
R HSH Y WE
WA

S H

ssAaP N[ RERE| S T8
—A-ARErEEER ELE
EREECrVEEAEREETE
ARF-EEANEFBEERES
EfrEERdERESE %
SSAPNEENERERLAER
BELANEECHERAEAN
FEESH-SBARRR ST
—E¥=H=t+—-HHEEAEEE
§2ge0p 0008 T EEFEARMN
SHEERESESEmE



MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — confinued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

3.

SIGMNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have besn prepared under the historical
cost conwention as modified for the revaluation of certain
properies and investments in securities.

The financial statements kave been prepared in accerdance with
aceouniing principles generally accepted in Hong ¥ong. The
principal accounting poficies adopted are as follaws:

Basis of consclidation

The consalidated financial statements incorporate the financial
siatements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to March
31 each year except for eBanker USA.com, Inc. and its
subsidiaries whose financial year end is Decernber 31,

The results of the subsidiaries and associates scquired or drsposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated income
statemnent from the effective date of acquisition or up to the
effective date of disposal, as appropriate.

All significan: intercompany lransactions and balances within
the Group have been eliminated on consolidation.

Goodwill

Geotwill arising on conselidation represents the excess of the
cost of acquisition over the Group’s interest in the fair value of
the identifizble assets and liabilities of @ subsidiary at the date
of acquisition.

Goodwill arising ©n acguisitions prior fo. March 31, 2001
continues to be held in reserves, and will be charged to the
income statement 2t the time of dispesal of the relevant
subsidiary, o at such time as the goodwill is determined to be
impaired.

Goodwill arising on acqguisitions after March 31, 2001 is
capitalised and amonised on 3 sraight-line basis over its useful
economic 1ife. Goodwill ansing on the acguisition of an asseciate
is included within the casrying amount of the associzie. Goodwill
arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries is presented separately
in the balance sheet.

On- disposal of 2 subsidiary, the atributable amount of
unamuorised geodwiligoodwill previousty eliminated against or
credited to resens is included in the determination of the profit
or loss on disposal,
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

3.

SIGMIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued
Negative goodwill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the Group’s interest
in the fair value of the identifiable assets and lizhilities of 2
subsidiary at the date of acquisiton over the cost of zcquisition.

Negative goodwill arising an acquisitions prior to March 31,
2001 continues to be held in reserves and will be credited to
income at the time of disposal of the rel subsidiary or
associate.

MNegative goodwill arising on acguisitions afier March 31, 2001
is presented as deduction from assets and will be released to
income based on an analysis of the circumstances from which
the balance resufted.

Negative goodwill arising on the acquisition of an associzte is
deducted from the carrying value of that associate. Megative
goodwill arising on the acguisition of subsidiaries is pr ed
separately in the balance sheet as 2 deduction from assets,

To the extent that the negative goodwill is atiributable 1o losses:
or expenses anticipated at the date of acquisition, it is released
to income in the period in which those losses or expensas arise.
The remaining negative goodwill is recognised as income on a
straight-line basis over the remaining averzge useful life of the
identifizhle scquired depraciable assets. To the exient that such
regative goodwall exceeds the aggregate fair value of the acquired
identifiable non-monetary’ assets, it is recogrised as income
rmamediatedy.

Revenue recognilion
Sales of gonds are recognised when goods are delivered and
title has passed.

Sabe proceeds on wading of securities are recognised on a wade
date basis when a sale and purchase contract is entered into.

Dividend income from investments js recognised when the
sharebolders' right to receive payment has been established,

Rental income, including rentals invoiced in advance from
properlies under operating leases, s recopnised on a straight
line hasis over the term of the lease,

Interest income from credit card receivables is recognised in the
income statement on an accrual basis, except where a debt
becomes doubtful, in which case recognition of interest income
is suspended umtil it is realised on a cash basts.

Other interest income is sccrued on a fime basis by reference o
the principal outstanding and at the raze applicable.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 37, 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Subsidiaries

Investrrients in subsiaries dre inclided in the Company’s balance
chest al cost less any identified impairment losses.

Asspciales

The consolidated income statement includes the Group’s share
of the post-acquisition: results of s associates for the yeas In
the consalidaled balance sheet, ntesests in associztes are stated
at the Group's share of the net assets of the associates less any
identified impairment loss.

The results of assbciates are accounted for by the Company on
the basis of dividends received and receivable during the year.
In the Company's balance sheet, investments in associates are
ctated at cost, as reduced by any identified impairmen losses.

Investment properties

Invesiment properiies are completed properties which are held
for their investrnent potential, any rental income being negotiated
at anm's length.

{rvestment properiies are stated a1 their open market value based
on independent professional valuations at the balance sheet date.
Ay serplus or deficit arising on the revaluation of investment
properties is credited or charged to the investment property
revaluation reserve unless the balapce of this reserve is
insufficient 1o cover a deficit, in which case the excess of the
deficit ower the balance of the investmeant property revaluation
reserve i charged 1o the income statement. Where a deficit has
previously been charged to the income staiement and. 3
revaluation surplus subsequently. arises, this surplus is credited
1o the income statement 1o the extent of the deficit previously
charged.

On disposal of an investment property, the halance on the
investment progerty revaluation reserve attributable 10 that
property is transferred to the inceme statemens.

Mo depreciation is provided in respedct of investment properties.
which are held on leases with unexpired tesms, including the:
renewable period, of more than twendy years.
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MNOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES ~ conlinwed
Property, plant and equipment

Praperty, plant and equipment, other than properties held for
development, are stated at cost less depreciation amd ampnisation
and accumulated impairment losses,

The gain or loss arising from the disposal or retirement of an
asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceed
and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the
income slateneend,

Cestain progerties held for development are carried at a valuation
ar March 31, 1995 Advantage has been taken of the transitional
relief provided by paragraph 80 of the Statement of Standard
Accounting. Practice No. 17 “Property. plant and equipment™
issued by the Hong Kong Society of Accountants from the
requirenrent to make regular revaloations of the Group’s land
and buildings which had been carried out a1 revalued amounts
prior to September 30, 1995 and, accordingly, no further
revaluation of properties held for development is carried out.
The surpfus arising on revaluation of land and buildings was
credited 1o the revaluation reserve. Any future decrease in value
of these assels wifl be charged 1o the income statement to the
extent that it exceeds the balance, if any, on the revaluation
reserve relating to @ previous revabiation of the asset. On the
sale or refin + of such zssefs, the attributahle revaluation
us will be ferred bor d profits.

Mo depreciation is provided on properties held for development.

Depreciation is provided to wrize off the cost of property, plant
and equipment over their estimaded wseful lives, on the following
hases and at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold Land Onver the remaining terms
of the leasss
Buildings 2% on straight line method
Leasehold imprevements Owver the teom of the lease
Furniture, fixtures and 20 — 25% on reducing balance
motar yehicles method
Properties held for sale

Preperties held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost includes borrowing cost, professional fees
and other direct costs attributable o such properties. Met
realisable vatee represents the estimated selling price less all
further costs to completion and costs 10 be incurred in selling.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

3

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an expenss
in the period in which it is incurred.

An internafly-generally intangible asset asising from dsvelopment
expenditure is recognised anfy if it s anticipated that the
develogment costs incimred on a-cleary-defined project will be
recovered through future commercial activity, The resultant asset
ix amastised on 2 straight-line basis over its useful life.

Vihere: no internally-generated intangible asset can be recognised,
development expenditure is recognised as an expense in the
period in which it is incurred.

Impairmend

At each balance sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying
amounts of its tangible and intangible assets to deternsine whether
there s ‘any indication ‘that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss. If the recoverabie amount of an assel is
estimated to be less than fts camying amount, the canmying amount
of the asset is reduced 1o its recoverable Impai
losses are recognised as an expense immediately, unless the
relevant asset ks carried at 2 revalued amoum under another
accounting standasd, inwhich case the impairment loss is treated
as revaluation decrease under that accounting standard.

Where an impairment oss subsequently reverses, the carrying
amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate of ils
recoverable amount, such that the increased carrying amount
daes not excesd the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset
it prior years, A reversal of an impainment loss is recognised as
income immediately, untess the relevant asset is carried at a
revalued amount under another accounting standard. in which
case the reversal of the impairment boss is treated 25 a revaluation
increase under that accounting standand.

Borrowing cosis

Borrowing costs incurred directly aftributable w the acquisition,
canstruction or production: of qualifying assets, ie. assets that
negessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for
their inended use or sale, are capitalised as pan of the cost of
those assets. Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when
the assefs are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
[nvestmient income earned on the temperary investment of
spetific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs capitatised.,

All gther barrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the
period in which they are incurred
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - conlinued
Investments in securities

Inwestments 1 securities are recognised on a wade-date basis
and are initially measured 21 cost.

At subsequent reporting dates, debt securities that the Group
has the axpressed intestion and zbility 1o hold to maturity (held-
to-maturity debt securities) are measured 2t amortised cost, fess
any impairment loss recognised 1o reflect imeconvershle amounts.
The annual amortisation of any discount or premium on the
acquisition of a held-to-mawrity is aggregated with other
inwestment income receivable over the term of the instrument so
that the recognised in each period rep ts-a constant
yield on the imestment.

Investmenis other than held-ro-maturity debt secorities are
classified as investment securities and other investments.

Imveshment securities, which are secunties held for an identified
long-term g purpose, are d at subsequens reparting
dates at cost. as reduced by any impainment loss that is other
than temposany,

Other investments are measured ab fair valus, with unrealised
gains and losses included in net prodit or loss for the year.

Invenlories

Inventories, which represent goods held for resale and premium
items for card holders, are skxted at 1he lower of cost, cabeulated
using wetghted average method, and net realisahle value.

Leased assets

Leases are classified as finance leases when the terms of the
lease transfer substantially abl the risks and rewards of ownership
of the assets conceemed fo the Group. Asses held under ffnance
leases are capitalised at their fair valwes 21 the acquisition. The
corresponding liability to the lessor, net of inderest charges, is
included in the balance sheed as a finance lease obfigation.
Finance costs, which represent the difference between the total
leasing commilments 2nd the fair valee of {he assers acquized.
are charged to the income statement ower the period of the
relevant lezses 56 as 10 praduce a constant periodic rate of
charge on the remaining balance of the obligations for each
accounting periods.

All ather leases are classified as eperating leases and the annual

rentals are charged ta the income statement on 2 siraight-line
basis ower the refevant lease term.
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WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES — continued
Foreign currencies

Trarsactions in foreign currencies are translated at the rates ruling
on the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated a: the rates
ruling on the balance sheet date. Gains and losses arising on
exchange are dealt with in e ncome statement.

On consolidation, the financial statements of overseas operations
which are d nated in foreign currencies are translated at
the rates ruling on the balance sheet date. All exchange
differences arising on consolidation are dealt with in the
franslation reserve.

Tawation

The charge for taxation is based on the results for the year as
adjusted for tems which are non-assessable or disallowed. Timing
differences arise from the recognition for 1ax purposes of certzin
ftems of income and expense in 2 different accounting period
from that in which they Zre recognised in the financial statemenis..
The 1ax effect of timing differences, compated wsing the fizbility
method, is recognised as deferred taxation in the financial
slatements ta the extent that it is probable that a liability oran
asset will crystallise in the foreseeable future,

TURNOVER

Turnawer represents the interest eamed an credit card advances.
service income, Income from trading of securities, dividend
income, interest earned on bank deposits and Joans, amounts
received and receivable on the sale of goads, and rental income
and is summarised as follows:

Credit card interest income EEEMERA
Credit card service income EEFEREA
Income fram trading of securities RREHWA
Dividend incame BREEA

Oither interest income K#EdA
Rental income EHedrh

Sale of goods RAKE
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Business segments

For mznagement purposes, the Group is currertiy organisad into
five operating dhvisions — credit card operations, securities trading
and imwestments, treasury investment, retailing of Eashion apparef
avd assessories, property investment and med:cal health care.
These principal operating activities are the basis o which the
Graup reports its primary segment information:
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 371, 2002

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION - continused
Business segments — conlimsed

Segment information about these business is presented below.

REVEMUE AND RESULTS
Year ended March 37, 2002
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

5.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION — continued

Business segments — continued

BALAMCE SHEET

At March 31,2002
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OTHER INFORMATION
Year ended March 37, 2002
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

5.

SEGMEMTAL INFORMATION - confinued

Business segments - continued

REVEMUE AND RESULTS
Year ended March 11, 2001
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002
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5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION - continued 5. HEYwH-w
Business segments — conlinued EEoE-a
BALANCE SHEET ﬁg % o
At March 31, 2001 R_¥¥—-¥=A=+—H
EEESs REUW  HERE HEE HEEW g
ERK &% KEFR
Retailing of
Credit card  1z2ding and Treasary  apparel and Property
peralioas i i assessories  investment Consolidated
HES'000  HES'D00  HKS'000  HKSW0D HES'000  HES0GS
ASSETS i
Segrent asseis SHBHE 126,735 +h, 060 12024 1.500 83957 0509
Unallocated coparate  RBERE
aes EE 47,761
Consolidated 1otal assets B HESE 318270
LIASIEITRES fn#
Sepment Tizhilities HEAN 52,373 43 45 200 3407 56,072
Urallocated corporate. BAELE
|rabiiities: -1 | 13,083
Consolidased toeal Eean
|rabiities 26 59,155
OTHER INFORMATION ks tg L] =
Year ended March 31, 20401 BREEE—E-A=t+—HE
=%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

5. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION - continued

Geographical segments

The Group's opérations are principally located in Hong Kong.

Morth Americz and South East Asia

The fellowing table provides an analysis of the Group's sales by
geographical market, irespective of 1he origin of the goods!
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Sales revenue by Contribution to
geographical marke! loss from operations
002 2001 2002 2001
HK$ 000 HKS 000 HES 000 HEKS'000
Hong Kong FiE 60,206 B3.967 5,990 {42,335}
Morth America M 164 1437 355 570
Sauth East Asia HEE 215 217 115 217
60,685 Gr.621 G460 148,548
Unallocated comporate revens FRELA®RA 6,335 12,887
Unallpcated comporate expenses ERELAZH 135,504 (37,388}
Impairenent loss recognised RRNES
in raspect of goodwill ZEH 23,8981 -
Lass from operztions -3 13 71,607 (66,049
The following is an analysis of the carrying amount of segment  TREEENEFEREXREELF
assets at the balanice sheet date, and additions 1o property, plant. RBRERRESENSERGESREE.
and equipment and intangible assets during the vear, analysed HEEFERELE:
by the geographical area in which the assets are located:
M E ERHR-NER
T ERREENE
Additions to
Carrying property, plant
amount of and equipment
segmenl assels and intangible assets
2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$'000 HES'000 HEKS 000 HKS$"000
Hang Keng b % 208,049 262,403 < 5,802
Marth America R 38,774 4,580 16,714 -
South East Asia EHB 3,211 3,546 - 6474
255,034 270,509 6714 12,276




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — conlinued

B

WA -

FOR THE VEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 HE - ET K==+ ELE
OTHER OPERATING INCOME 6. HEEgE
2002 2001
HES D00 HKS" 000
Incleded in other operating income are: HESEgERA 8
Option fees recogaised ;ﬂﬂﬂﬂiﬁ? - 9,060
Gain on disposal of investment properiies EEgESREraE - a31
Oither incame EBHA 2,435 2,896
Financial advisory fee-received from a HERELFANEF
relzsted company (rote 430l B RO OB EEA3d) 3,500 -
6,335 12,867

NET LOSS ON INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES AND PROPERTIES 7. :#na;a: ZHEENT

Irapairment Toss recognised in respect of © SEERaEA:

-Pj:lrapertiﬁ held for development - ﬁ;i! B>
t

— land and buildings —EHRIET

Met impairment loss recognised in respect BERRA EFEER
of held-to-maturity securities HiaEnEs

Uinneafised gain (loss) on other investments RegRErs28

e (B 5t
Deficit on revaluation of investment properties AEWOEEHES

Impairment loss was provided o reduce the carrying vallue. of
certain properties held for development and land and building
1o theie recoverable amount by reference o the indepencent
professional valuation.

o002 2
HKS'000 HKS 000
i1.z000 B
13.935] -
1,624} {45,000
6. 590 (12,609)
(1,042) (238)
211 {57,847

REEHACFRE- SES SR
HEHE REERRIETER
RigmBrrEElREEN
T E MR

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 37, 2002
8. LDAS FROM OPERATIONS

Loss from operations has been arrived at
after charging:

Auditors’ remuneration
= Ci=ven year
- (Over) underprowision in respect of
peior year
Amartisation of goodwill
Depreciation
Loss an dispasal of property, plant and
equipment
Loss on disposal of investment properties
Minimum lease payments for operating leases
i nespect of
- rented premises
- leased assets
Allewance for bad and doubtful debis
Saatf costs including directors’
emoluments {notel

and criaditing:

Dividend income

Gross rental income from investisent properties
less outgoings of HK$181,000
{2007 HX$490,000

Note: - Incloded in stafl costs ane retirement besefit scheme comibutions

HMEREEE-=
BEE-—RE-H¥=H=1+—Hi¥HK
8. ESEN
2002 2001
HKS"000 HES 000
ABER
EmRk:
EREsS
—WEE 1,609 1,734
—LEE
(EE RRER {163 61
HERME 900 =
£k ] 2,380 2387
HEwE-EERaR
ZE#H B 153
HAEREMEES 2 -
PRERrREES
~-fise 2,638 5.024
—Hi W NE 25 38
REmuR 26,646 26,913
R R
HEWE) (W) 47,104 47,395
Rt A
BRHA 1,043 956
RRGEBESHA
A H181,00008 T
(=FT—5:
450, DO0GE T 1,170 1,435

of approxmmarely HEKSE56,000 (20071 HKEATE 0000, mer o

Torfetied conmribitions of nil (2000 nill,

R EASrsssEkeEeEN

BE55,0008 L L ZFF— &
73,0008 %! IEfREan
UFRA I _FF-5-811.

9. FINAMCE CO5TS 9. WERA
2002 2001
HK$'000 HKS' D00
Interest on: THESEXHE:
Bank loans and owerdrafts whotly repayable ARAENEEREY
within five years HEFERXEEE - m
Amount dae 1o an associate ERBELAZRE 6660 8,500
her bosoawings rot wholly repayahle EAREERER
within five years REESEE 265 193
6,925 9,063
Nointerest was capitalised by the Group during the year. =RMEREEHER TR



directors [2001: four), details of whose emoluments are set ouf
abave. The emofuments of the remaining one [200%: onel highest
paid employess, other than directors of the Company, are as
Tallows:

EgiTfT—F i AZI R K
FaafceR tx-HEg—4&
(—Ef—F-—R FRLARE
ZRBEEAZEERT:

NOTES T0 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued [UF: 3 &3 I E S NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued B 5 B e B -
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 BE-_RR_S=A=t—Bk¥E FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 RE-FTE=NSt+—-RikER
10, DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10, WM& R EHEE D 11, TAXATION 11, Ba
2002 200 2002 2001
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS D00 HES" 000
The directors” emeluments are analysed TEMEATET: [ The tax credit [chargel comprises: BERAIZH) BE:
as Tollows:
Haong Kang Profits Tax E2ANE
Fooet: | } - Owt‘Euruderi provision in respect of —EFE 89 {2
Executive € - - | prior gear BB AR =R
Non-executive E 3 o 305 403 1 — Dieferred taxation (nate 331 —-EERE R - B12
Independent non-executive EU AT 515 540
i &5 610
Oither emoluments peid 1o executive directors: BT ESZ LAME: | —
Galasies ard other bensfits BLREasH 31,329 30,451 Mo provision for Hong Xong Profits Tax has been made in the REFEGERES
= : = . F : BEH &
Resirement benefit scheme contribution HkE HRE 333 332 finzncial statements as there is no assessable profit for the year. BEFTEsSHFRERERES
.
Oither emoluments paid to alternate directors: BHEFETEEAME: "
Salaries and other benefits FERRthEH 875 1,283 . 12, LOSS PER SHARE 12. HBRER
Retirement banefit scheme confribution i R i 56 78 )
The calculation of basic loss per share is based on 1he net loss EREXGHNEBEETELS
gl - o 33,415 33,086 for the year of HK$39, 708,000 2001: HK$99;829,0000 and on SREMI0T0000E T (ZBE—
emolipme the weighted average number of 1.268,117.965 (2001: Fre0829 0MERI RFRER
The emaluments af the directors were within the follewing bands: EEIMENFTRHEE: 1.268,116,457] ordinary shates in issue during the year. FHAEBR2ZEUETSHN
1,265,117 965R I FF— 5
2001 2001 1,26B. 1164518 ) FrH -
Mumber of Number of |
divecters L : The :f:»mpt._llatiun of diluted loss per share daes not assume the ERSTESERARASEED
W AR L 7S exercise of potential dilutive v shares as their sxercise FREAR-AEHNESEER
would result in reduction m loss per share in both years. BEfAEESERGRTE.
HEsMI oo o HKSE,000,000 = 1,000.000% 10 m |
HES1,000,001 to HKST, 500,000 1,000,001 1. 5000008 7T 1 1
HS5,000,001 to HKS3,500,000 5,000,001 5,500,0008 7 = 1
HK$5. 500,001 to HKSE,000,000 5,500,001 2 6,000,000 T 1 -
HK524, 000,001 to HEKE24, 500,000 24,000,001 £24,500,000F T - 1
HKS24.500,001 1o HK$2F,000.000 24,500,001 25,000,000 T t =
Highest paid employees EEEREO
The five highest paid individuals of the Group included four rENFLEBAEEZEATES

2002 2001

HK$ D00 HK$/000

Salaries and ather benefits EimRBEdH 826 TI7
Retiremen: bepefit scheme contributions | EIFHES 24 B
850 725




INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

VALUATION

Ar beginning of the year

Acquired en acquisition of a subsidiary
Disposal

Deficit arising on revaliation
Exchange realignment

At end of the year

The market value of invesiment properties shown above

comprises:

Long lease in Hong Kong
Medium-term leases in-Hong Kong
Freehold outside Hong Kong

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

LF§ E ]

BE ST =H=1—Ni¥H
13, BEHE
i
THE GROUP
2002 00t
HES 000 HES000
i B
i 1B.755 26,017
AREEHRELFASERA 8.432 =
5 397 6,774
wFiEER {1.042] 238
ERER - {2500
Ligid 25,748 18,755
HERWERZTEES:
002 001
HES'000 HKS'000
BEREEHINE 11,860 13,300
FETEER2ME 2,063 2,330
EFERAAEEIDR 11,825 3,125

25,748 18,755

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — confinued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 317, 2002

13.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES ~ continued

The investment properties of the Gaoup at SUP Tower located at
Mo.4 Mercury Street, Nos.75-83 King's Road, Morth Peint, Hong
Kong were revalued at March 31, 2002 on an open marked
existing use basis by Sallmanns (Far East) Limited, an &

fiem of professional valuers, at & value of HK$11,860,000. A
deficit arising on revaluation of HKST 440,000 is chaiged to the
Encoame statement,

The invesiment properties of the Group at Mo.105 How Ming
Street, Kwun Tong, Hong Kong were revalued a1 March 31, 2002
on an.open market value basis by Sallmanns (Far East) Limited,
at 3 value of HKS2,063,000. A deficit arising on revaluation of
HKS$267,000 is charged 10 the income statement.

The investment propenties of the Group 2t Ne. B503, 4821 53rd
Street, Defta, British Columbia, Canada and No, 1251, Albernl
Street, Vancouwer, British Columbia, Canada were revalued at
March 35, 2002 on an open market value basis by Johnston,
Ross & Cherg Lid., an independent firm of professional valuers,
at value of HK$3.393,000 (CAD 684,000, A surplus arising on
revaluation of HK$665,000 (CAD 134,000) is credited to the
I [ - Jim Fad .

The investment propercties of the Group at No. %81 Nefson Street;
Vancouver, British Columbia, Canmada were revalued at March
317, 2002 on an-open market value basis by Colliers Imemational
Realty Advisors Inc, 2n independent film of professional valuers;
at walise of HE$3,432,000 (CAD 1,700.000% Mo suiplus or deficit

- arising oo revaluation.

The Group’s invesiment properties are held for rental purposes
under operating leases,

WA E-.
RE-FPE=A=-AhFER

3. #RHE-=

*RAEFAESNFRIANOE
FS-aIEAREIEESHE AN
FHEHER _—_TR ==
T-H RERGEEEN RN
FRLAEERTLATHER
EHES- HEER1,860.000%
et 40000 TS BRI AR
B

FEEBENRFRBEESHE
IGELZERESR S &=
A=ZF—R AREEESERN
HE ERAERLBTEESR
HEFTE - 80 52,063,000
TR EBES LT 0FET-B S
AREBET.

ARWBEGTOSEEEERSE
Defta 53IFBSOT - BN BNFALR
BREEESAbemid 2B R
TSR _FFT_SF=ER=1T—
B 2t B % {5 1 E)ohnston, Ross &
Cheng Led R ARTHEEETE
EH & HE 53393000 %
fsgqo00m I +EHEBED
GRS O00 T (124,000 %) (BB
AEawERET.

ESNARmELENEEES
Melson Street SR1E X B HEH
ZEPCE-—RA=+—HAaRY
BUEAE 5 Colliers International
Realty Advisors Inc. S R T2
G E B FLSE B a,432, 0008
i 00000 B EEE
EEERRRES-

FRANCEHSRGSESSEH
KEHELERE.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

W R R -
BEFFSS=AZF—-NESE

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 4. BE-EEAEGR
1a 4] Wi-mR HREER
RN wIXE & id 8 2R L} ]
Furniture,
fxtures  Properties
Lard and Leasehald and moter hebd for
baildings  improvements wehicles  development Tozal
HKS000 HK§'000 HK B0 HES' 008 RS0
THE GROUF RN
COST Of VALLIATION REBRER
A Aprif T, 2008 s = St
RE~B 13,509 3,266 18,519 47380 92 B84
Or soqusition of sbsidunes WRAERLE - - oM - ]
Additons <5 8 - - &2 - 5
Dispasals HE - - 1137) - 3
Ar Manch 38, 2002 RIFECS
=A=%+H 13,505 128 178 £7.380 54,731
Comprning: EE:
A rost &8 13,909 3066 b Wikl § 43078 0529
A1 firedzssicenal vahration AEEE
- 1995 ——&NEF - - - a0 #2048
23,509 2 3 0. 47389 4,733
DEPRECIATION ANTH FRERR
IMFAIRMENT
Af Ageil 1 2001 R=FE-F
EE—E ] | .BXF 14833 - 174
Peanided lor the year EEERA 40t 595 1,183 = 2,180
fmpaiment loss recognised SEEREES 1533 - - 1,200 5135
TEminzted oo drposals HEERE < = {71} = 7
AL Mazch 31, 2008 R S &
=i=trll 4,964 1423 16, 145 1200 L+
NET BOIOK VALUES EEFR
M Masth 31, 2002 RoFR_F
ER=+—8 14945 B3 4,033 86,150 . 70,001
A March 31,2001 ROTT-F
=A=1+—8 23281 1439 3.4% 47,380 75596

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

T B e -
BEZRR_F=H=+—-AEFR

14, PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT — continued 14. BHE-EWEESE -9
The et book value of propenies shown 2bove comprises: BEwSrREFERS:
LEERY E R 4 EXF
Propesties held
Land and buildings for development
2002 2001 002 2001
HES"000 HKS'060 HES000 HKS 000
Madium-term leases in Hong Kong FESNHEH
W 12,600 16,807 41,976 43,178
Medium-term leases outside FHRBTPHER
Hong Kong ZHE 6,345 6,474 < s
Freeheld outside Hong Kong #ERBALES _
zEE - - 4,20 4,204
15,945 23,281 46,180 57,380

The ned book wvalue of fumiture, fixtures and motor vehicles
includes an amount of approximately HKT,347,000 (2001
HESMT in respect of assets held under finance leases.

ER-EERNECyrEEHSER
KEHET REH1.3497.0008 T
IZB2F—5:2) FBH-

Included im property held for develop 1 s omet i FEEREEZORAEEERE
capitalized of HK$6,724 (:00. Wi 2 F B 6.7 24, 0000 5
The properties held for development of the Group consist of ESEFFRRINRIEAE

several parcels of vacant freshold land at the City of Desert Hot
Springs, Riverside County, Califomnia, LL.SA They were revalued
at March 31, 1995 on an open market value basis by Amy .
WoodClem Demus at 2 value of approxkimately HK$4,204,000
{Li55540,000). Had the properties held for development met been
resalued and camried at cost, the carrying value of the properties
held for development would bave been stated at approximately
HEK$5,923, 000 (2001: HK$6,923,000).

ERxERBEETHCIy of
Desert Hot Springs, Riverside
County> BEEEASRE 5.
BEMBER-AAEF=R=T
— H B Amy ). WoodiCtem Demus
ELRTHEEEREE HEH
£ H4,204,0008 7T (540,000
Zi-EEERECWRSSET
GEHESEHAR - AREERR
56523 0MET (ZFF— -
6.923, 000 TT) «



NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

T4

15

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT - continued

THE COMPANY

COST

At Apil T, 2001
Dizposals

Al March 31, 2002
DEPRECIATION

At April 1, 2001
Provided for the year
Eliminated on disposals
At March 3T, 2002

NET BOOK VALLFES
ArMarch 31, 2002

At March 3%, 2007

GOODWILL

Arising on acquisitions curing the year
Less: Aumodtisation during the year

Balance a1 end of the year

HAE

bR
BoEF—FH
BE

ik St
&
RoSTERN
EEERE
HEEeE
BROEF-F=

EHFA
BROoSR"EZ

BEFF—RES

EREBFES
HOEAEE

EREH

The amortisation periods 2dopied for goodwill is five years on a

straight line basis

o 5 9 A -

BE_SF _H=A=+—HEFE
4. HE-EKBRRERE-N

H—B

A=i—a

A—8

A=+—8

A=%1—8
A=t—8

15. W

EE-ER
Rk
Furnitere,
fixtures and
maotor vehicles
HES 000

1,930
{1HO5Y

1.685

% 1
131
{62}

1,439

445

629

e 1

THE GROUR

002
HKS 000

17,358
(9000

2001
HES000

26,458

EEXFRETHEUESEAERN

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued HHEERE-—=
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 RE ¥ -"¥="HA=1+—-RtxHE
16.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. ERWE
L &)
THE GROLP
2002 2001
HKS 000 HES 000
COST L ES ]
Acquired on acquisitions of subsidiaries HEFEESSRES
and 21 end of the year 65,293 -
Intangible assess represents software development costs, which ERRELEARSAL- RS
are amoctised oo a straight line basis over the products lives of ERC-ERSEIELFERBH
three to four years.
17, INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 17. REMASZRY
HpE
THE COMPANY
2002 2001
HES D00 HES 000
Unlested shares, a1 cost ErmRe EREE 279.451 219,451
Less: Impairment losses recognised FoRR= - i ] (133,851} (133,851}
B, 600 B5.600
Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries at March 35, 2002 are B oFT_F=f=1+—-HEE
set oul in note 45, SRR s
18.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. RERRAZEE
A A
THE GROLUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001
HES 000 HES 800 HES 000 HKS 000
Unlisted shares, at cost FEEHBTE
Baxd - - 5,869 5,869
Less: Impairment losses recognised BB EERE
&R - - 15,569} {5.869)
Shase of net assets BiERERE = - - =

Particidars of the Group's principal associaze at March 33, 2002
are set oul in nole 46,

B_RET_E-A=1+-—-8H&%
EIEERLEArENERES
0

61



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - confinued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

19, INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES

THE GROUP

[quity secuciies:
Lated
Veimied

Debt serurees:

Uatited

Wurket vaton-of
tied seguritiss

Camyiag smpost
anelyses for
tepatting
pRTpsES 35

Crorresst

EHRE
wH

BeRER
REZ
E&H
RE:

E1
Edl

Bk -

BRE-SR _S=H=F—HESE

7.5 %151

19. BERWY
E s 1)
BEEANE £nBE EERE a8
e st Other
Feld 1o maturisy secErilins ettty Tedal
M0t hii 1] oL R0 280 M 8T 801
HESTO HEC0E0 HES00)  HESTO)  HESIOR HKS'008  HES'd hiva ]
= - 1,9 3583 45811 10,358 ATEN | 1521
- - LRLY 1583 - - 4163 A8
- - KRR 7768 iR 1358 . LEAR
- = = = B3 1045 Bl 1,045
- 5,408 1425 1,625 - - 1405 1681
- 15,508 145 145 L] 13 pR. JTE
- - (K = 1881 # N5 1540 574 15785
- 1408 5398 5, 108 - - 3588 TR
- 508 b o ¥ 8715 TEAE HH2 16002
- - p R 10308 15 R 5554 s
- - - L L] 11400 M TS 16460
- KM 7387 191 - 5 58 MW
B 46TT5 1es .1 46 e

—

e

sas

Ty

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002
19

INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES - continued

THE COMPANY

Equity securities:
Listed
Unliszed

Market value of
listed securities

Canrying amount
analysed for
reporiing
purposes as:

Current
MNON-Cunnen

BERE
bk
W

twEs
v

BERER
mfFz
EEE
i

o3
FREE

B 85 A R o - m
BE ¥ _SF=0=1—HEFER

AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

THE COMPANY

The amounts are prsecured, nterest free and have no fixed
repayment terms. In' the opinion of the direciors, the amounts
will not be repaid within the mext twalve months from the balance
sheet date and, accordingly, the amounts zre shown 3s non-

CLfnend.

19, #REE-N
L
4§ S Lo 5. 83 E 1
Investment securities Other investments Total
2002 2007 2002 2001 2002 2001
HK$'0D0  HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000  HEX$000
— = ¥ a4 T
3.883 3,883 - 3,883 3.883
3,883 3,683 4 7 3,887 3,890
- - 4 i 4 7
- - 4 T 4 Fa
3,883 3,883 - 3,883 3,883
3,883 3,883 4 7 3,887 3,890
200 WELAXE
E ¥4
EEREESEE-SEREES

BER-FRER . BREASN
RERBENT __EAANE.B
ERTEEREE-



NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

21

22,

3.,

LOANS RECEIVABLE 21.
Term loans ERfE
Mengage loans, after allowance BEREERER
Less: Amount due within ene year i!:i!EEiiiElT
showm umder current assets F—ERER
EER®
Amount dee after one year —EFERNK

The term loans are unsecwred, inlerest bearing at prevailing
market rates and are repayable on March 22, 2003,

The morigage loans bear inferest at 0.5% aver prime fates and
are repayable by instalments and the last of which are falling
due within the period from 2005 10,2083, The loans zre secired

(182 51 I
BE-RET-SE=A=+—HNESFE

R 3
KM
THE GROUP

2002 2001

HES 000 HKS'000

548 3,323

1,760 2921

2408 6,245
10,776 (1,027h

632 5,218
EREEREREE-SETATES

EHASHRCFFEETRT
=1 1 O

HBERE S HE oSN
HE HAMBR IR _TEE
ER-CSEER-BERED

by morigages aver the comesponding propesties. HFRSSRfrEN-
INVENTORIES 22. #R
Es 4] AEA
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 20401
HES 000 HAS"000 HES 000 HKS 000
Premium ftems foe credit fEREEHEA
card hoiders ZTHE 40 31}-'! - -
Goods held for resale HELEEERS - 5 = 5
A20 309 - 5
Al inwemuories afe carried at cost BREEREAXELE
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE 23. #fRD
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY AR A
The propenies held for sale are situated in Hong Kong and held EERENRFE -HEERES
wrder mediem-tesm leases, SEE

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

24

25,

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 24.

Thie Group does not 2liow any credit terms o its tradé customers
but allows upto 56 days inseres: free repayment period for the
credit cand holders for retail sales.

The following is an a2ged analysss of wade receivablies at the
repodting «date:

0 - &0 days D-s0H

61 ~ 90 days 60908

Ower 90 days o0 Bl E

Dleposits, prepayments and other receivables HE-BEARER
HeEmfan

AMOUNTS DUE FROM ASSOCIATES 25.

THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY

The amounts are unsecured, interest free and have no fixed
repayment terms.

SHARE CAPITAL 26.

Ordinary shares of HKS0.25 each HBEEE0ISETZHER
Authorised: EERE:
A1 beginning and at end BCET_SR_FTF
of the years 2002 and 2001 FHRESR
Issized and fully paid: CETRRAERS:
At Apeil 1, 2000 Tk T3 23
Exercise of wanants fTEERES

At March 31, 2001 and
March 31, 2002

Ro¥F-S=H=1+—-HER
ZER-_E=F=+—H

B e R -
BE-SFT-_¥=A=F—HiEE

B8 L 1 0 o T

FEMGERAEEERATER
RES-BEAFEESATEER
BzTATIAELBERE.

BEEE -ARENNERERD
HisF:

ES 4
THE GROLUP

2002 2001

HES 000 HKS$"000

63,590 112,060

4,558 2513

25,568 15,304

17,634 11,732

111,350 141,609
BEA&E Rk
£ 1 B & 43

BEFRANEER-LEREES
=TEm-

L&

REEH &
Number

of shares Amount
HKS 000
2,000,000,000 500,000
1,268,113,712 317,028
4253 1
1,268,117,965 317029




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 37, 2002

6.

SHARE CAPITAL — contlinwed

Mavements during the year in the share options granzed are as

Tolltws:

E LR ER ] frem
Exercisable

Date of grant period

4.22.1936 4721996 - 4212006

5.5, 1997 5.95.7997 - 5.04.2007

26,1997 10.26.1597 - 10.25.2007

Mo share option was granted or exercised under the Company’s

share option scheme during the year.

RESERVES

THE GROUP
A1 Agril 1, 3000

Goodwill arising an
scquisitiom of
addeonal injerest
i @ subsidiary

Capital reserve arising
o acquisitzon of
subsidiaries

Exchange realignment

N loss for the year

Al March 31, 2000

Refested on depmed
dispenal of 2 subsidiary

impairment of goodwill
recogrised (Note]

Exchiange cealipament

et bogs for the year

A Maech 31, 2002

EkN
BR-REEEF
ER-18
GARELE
BERES

EXrER

ARERLE
EL T Wx
GE

gELAN

EREATE

BE=F% &
ZA=+—d
EfFaE
ERLa
mEEIER
EEERERE
[
EE@ED
AFEERFN

rgad 3 et
=% b= el

it
Ex

04025
0.4512
03064

o 5 e Rl -
BRE-ZP-4£=A=1+—-NEER

26. BA-#

REEFARACHREIERERS

BF:

REE®H
Number of share opfions

BoR¥-F ROoFT¥
WH—R ZR=1—N
HER FROEH Hkirm
Al Lapsed An
4.1.2001  daring the year 1.31.2002
3070739 - 3071759
7,600,000 (2,000, 0207 15, 50,000
62,300,000 (1. 500,000 50,800,000
82,971,739 (3,500,000 T9ATLTI

RERA SEFHFERERES
pEFrRRSEHEROSRER

.
27. Wl
EREN AEHE KiUE ANAR 3 L 3
Share  Goodwill Capital  Tramdation
premium eV FESErVE eV Dreficit Total
HKS D00 HEST00 HKS 000 HES 000 HNS'000 HKL00)
166,50% 165,504} 1ATY 12,203 (305,083] 9,504
. 240 e - - (2400
- T = = -- 1721
= - - 173 - i)
- = - - 3, 8390 199,52 %)
JHE509 1t 8 padl T.4r 12,132 (402,911 (BT 204}
] 1006 - - - Ino6%
- 18,598 - - - ¥5.898
- * - 393 - 399
= = - = [39.708) (39, 7o
1,478 12,531 444.620) 185, 262!

166,50

124, 168]

T

.

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued HEwAREE-.
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 EE ¥ _F=A=F—-niEs

RESERVES — continued 7. WR-=
Node;  Prowision foe impainment loss was made on goodwill arising on Rli: Fascaam—mERsH
acguisitian of an associale by the managemen hased an their HErrENCERNERED
review of fimancial position of this assocate. The directors AzHAaREsdhRuE
coesidered that (e 2ssotiale cannot generate positive cash Sows Se-EpELABYROAER
in the future @ad the goodwill previowsly charged to veserve EAgECERINSRE-
st sl dn IS L e 2t ARARGREI ORI EY
MM S SR
Included in the above deficit was a deficit of HK$18,094.000 IHESEELRNRBAREL
[2007; HK$18,094,0040) representing the Group's share nf post- Bz b M 18,094 D00 T
acquisition deficht of associate. [ Z8F — 5 118,094, 00008 T} +
B&iaEmn E2 2

Share
premimm Dreficit Total
HES$'000 HK$'000 HKS 000
THE COMPANY T e |

AL April T, 2000 B_ERTERA B 166,509 {363,200 3,309
Net loss for the year EEEEAEE - 1139,559) [139,55%)
A March 31, 2000 B-¥®-—E£=A=+-—-8 366,509 (502,759 1136,250)
Net loss for the year . LEREHAS - 125,540 125, 440)
At March 31, 2002 BR_EX_—_HKF=F=+-—8 366,509 (528, 199) (161,690,

The Company had no reserve available for distribution to
shareholders at March 31, 2002

FLAR-EEFE=H=1—
AEEgRRTRREZEE.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

18,

BORROWINGS

Maortgage loans
Bank overdradts

Secured
Unsecured

The maturity of the above loans
and overdrafes is as foflows:

On demand os within one year

Mare than one year, but not
ewceeding twd YIS

More than two years, but not
exceeding five years

More than five years {Notel

Less: Amount due within one
wear showd umder
current liabilities

Amount due after one year

EREK
L EFE .58

HES
ERF

rEEIREE
ExrFRE
mT:

EERR—-FR
ER—¥E
rEMS
EEmER
FRESF
EEEF (REE

WoERAWT
—ERER
o]

—FHERZIER

WA MR-
RE-SE-S=A=t+—HiEH
2. i
EE 1 KBS
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 001 2002 2001
HKS D00 HES 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
10,476 4,803 - -
- 27 = 6
10,476 4,330 - 16
10,476 4,803 = =
= 27 - 26
10,476 4830 = 26
488 428 - 26
515 431 = —
1,775 1,450 = -
7,698 2,521 - -
10,476 4,330 - 26
1588 (428) - (26)
9,988 4,402 - =
Bl EEREGEESHEREZR

Mene: The foans bear imesest 31 market raies and are repayable n
insraliments over a period of 3 years. The lodns weie wsed 1o
firanoe the Acquisitoon ol propenty, plamt and equipnsent and

invesiment properties.

& AR RFMAERES.
FERAAERTES KSR
RERNRARIRE.

P s o

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 31, 2002

0.

3e.

31,

MR-

BE-ER-E=H=F—-HE%K

CONVERTIBLE DEBENTURES 29. WHREEE
ES 8]
THE GROUP
2002 2001
HES" 000 HES'000
Converlible debentures THRENRE 49,297 -
The comvertibile debentizres issued by a subsidiary of the Company AALFEFrHELAFRTITEA
bare interest 3t 4 rate of 10% per payable semi Iy RF XEEREF0E-BF
and will be matsred on August 1, 2008, The debentures are mot ERR—X - ERR_FTTAFA
callable prior to: maturity. These debentures are convertible into A—BHBE - EEMRTEREN
shares of common stock of the subsidiany at 2 conversion price HEME-BSMETLER.00
of UI555.00 per share. EERzHEERREARELS
sERRE-
OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES 0. BERSHEN
13 EdCE BEMHNH
Present value
Mimimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
. 2002 2001 2002 2001
HES 000 HKS 000 HKS000 HES 000
Amount payzhle under Anance AEBRREAER
leases. ZiEE
Within one year —ER 748 - 693 -
In the second 1o fifth years WEERFE (85
inclusive AREME) S48 - 70 -
1,656 = 1423 -
Less: Future finance charges BEERERE 273 - = =
Present value of lease obligatiens S WRERMEZRE 1,423 - 1,423 -
Less: Amount due within orve year 3 EBBWET
shown under current Br—Em
lizbilities HRMER (6934 =
Amount die after one year —EEEmIRTR L =
AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES 31, SHAWER@AZHN
THE GROUP AND THE COMPANY AEMRALR
The amounts. included in non-current liabilities, are unsecured, AfEERERRIEENERRE:

interest free and are not tepayable within the next twelve manths.
fram the balance sheet dare and, accordingly, the amounts are

shown as non-currenl.

SERFAEERNEEN T8
EREERRE - BaEaNARE
BEH-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

3.

32.

33

AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES - conlinuwed 3L
THE GROUP
The amound Included in current liabilities as 2t March 31, 2002

is unseured, interest free and has no fived repayment term.

Details of the zmocnt included in current liabilithes a5 a1 March

31, 2001 was stated in note 43(cl.

AMOUNTS DUE TO SUBSIDIARIES 32.
THE COMPANY

The amounts 2re unsecured, interest free and are not repayable

within the next twelve months from-the balance sheet date and.
accordingly, the amounts are shown as nor-current,

DEFERRED TAXATION 33,

At beginning of the year 4 -

Credit for the year inote 117 EEFEHETA
(REI

At end of the year e

The balance as a1 Manch 31, 2002 comprised deferred taxation
of HKST,014,000 2001: HK$1,014,000) regarding the provision
for withholding (2% on overseas interest income. The withholding
tax is due to be paid upon remitiance of the income from the
respective jurisdictions.

The Group and the Company have a net deferred tax assel
respectively which has not been recognised in the financial
statements as realisation of this asset in the loreseeable future &5

B 85 e B Gk -
BRE-EFSESAS-nESE

ENRSLAZET-5
AEE
poET-s==A=+—BWNE
ERAMzBENGEER - 208
EETENR-
RoTEF-ESRSH BN
EBANZAESMBREES
43ici
ErMELATRN
EES |
HERAEEEN -2 ARFRE
ERASHt_BARKERN
B EgEFMAREBRRRN-
R
FE |
THE GROUP
2002 001
HKS 00 HKS 000
T.014 1.626

- {612y

1.014 1,014

KR _g=-A=t—HzE
HBEERERELNIL0008 T
[ZET 510140008 %) - K
SENHNERAREREZSE-
SENREACHEAGAETR
HEEEHBEA

EENRELAREZEERN
PERE-EXEATRAREAR
EFRERBR - MEEAHFTR

uncertain. Details of the enprovided deferred tax asset are as RyapEE AtERrMER
folbows: AHESWET
£ 4| L o ]
THE CROUP THE COMPANY
2002 2001 2002 2001
HKS 000 HES000 HKS D00 HES"000
Ta effect of timing differences ETHERIHE
becauss of: mLiar
BikEN-
Tax losses BIEEH 54,458 30,553 16.325 B.056
Shaortiall (excesstof kax Eil - Pl E b
allowances over depreciation 2 S 183 58 (4% 8
Other timing differences KigsE 2,948 - - -
Met ceferred tax asset BEEREFRE 57.589 30611 16,282 8,064

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

33

34,

o e T -
RE-FE-F=H=+-REFR

DEFERRED TAXATION - continued BERMH-#
The amount of unprovided deferred tax credit ichargel for the EEEEEBECEERMDA
year is a5 follows: IZ=HImTF:
AEE Al
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
2002 001 2002 2001
HKS'D00  HKS'000  HKS'000  HX$'00D
Tax effect of timing differences HERERzSS
because of: R AT
B
Tax losses arising ErmmEE 23,905 16935 8,269 =
Shortfall (excessi of tax FHIHERT
allowances oves depreciation TE B 125 &3 (511 14
Cther timing differences Hégs 2,848 - - -
26,978 16,998 8218 14

Deferred taxation has not been provided on the valuation deficit
arising on the revaluation of investment properties and properties
held for development as profits arising on the disposal of these
assets would not be subject 10 taxation. Accordingly, the valuation
does not constitite a timing diffeience for tax purposes.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an aged analysis of rade and other payables at
the reposting date:

0 - B0 days FEDH

61 - 90 days 618 F90 B

Orver 90 days opH ELE

Accruals and other payables HENEEBERTK

aREEEREE-SEERZS
EEHRERESCAHMEESER.
HESREEESNERES Y

HHERRREERAEE-B

B RRAEE GEETFERN
&

FEREEN &N

EnABHERRENE KT
ERSHET

L 1|

THE GROUP
2002 2001
HK$' 000 HE$ 000
12,589 5,799
364 ]
G944 7.549
54.301 21,915
FR. a8 36,785




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ~ continued

FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

35.

RECONCILIATION OF LOSS BEFORE TAXATION TO NET CASH  335.

OUTFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Loss before taxation

Interest income

interest expenses

Allgwance for loan receivable

Loss {gain} on disposal of investment propernies

Irmpairment loss recognised in respect of
interests infamount dize from an associate

Gazin on deemed disposal of a subsidiary

Immpaisment boss recognised in respect of
goodwill

Prowision for guasanteed liahilnies

Loss on dispasal of property, plant and
equiprment

Irpairment less recognised in respect of
— properties urder development for sale
- land and buildings

Deticit on revaluation of investient properties

Degreciation

Amertisation of gocdwill

Decrease in term loans

lincrease] decrease in imvestments in securilies

(ncreasel decrease in inventories

Decrease {increase) in trade and other
recenvables

Decrease in bills payable

Decrease in trist receipt loans

Increase (decrease] in trade and other payables

[Decrezss} increase in amount due fo 20
associate
Exchange realignment

mes cash outflow from operating activities

MWREMEHE-m

RE_SP_4¥=H=1+—HEFE

EREREHAESEF RS
EhAEHE
2002 2001
HKS'000 HK$ 000
REHEERA {47,980) (100,439
B A [7B4) (8.605]
HEeTn 265 563
EREREEHE 890 250
HESREIEIES (gE 21 (931)
—HBELEEE RE
EBERERS 412 5.327
EhaEMELASZEE (30,964 -
EECRSHEER
28,895 -
ARS8 (4,885} -
HEEE-EER
aEzES 6 153
EESRIESR
-HEEIBZHE 1.200 -
—THRERT 3,935 =
EEHREEES 1,042 238
nE 2,380 2.387
EEEY an0 -
EifrEEERX IR 2,675 182
BRREZ A RS {8,045) 101,899
5 gallb 3 ATy (1 369
ERERESGKEE
B (EE) 48,565 (FB.227]
EHERIR> - 217
5 EtemiER T W2 & 207}
HEREHEHEE
i (g 7084 [29,579)
ErEHSLANRE
Z i) [19,824) 44,470
ELEE 399 149
SEREEIREMRE
BE (83,8611 (62,012)

e

R

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

36.

azr.

MAJOR NOMN CASH TRANSACTION

1] During 2001, interest income amounting to HESS, 128,000
was received from an associate, eVision Intemational, Inc.
(*eVision), tlormerly known as eVision USA.com, Inc.),
in foem of its common stocks.

(bl During the year, a subsidiary of the Company subscribed
for 600,000,000 ordinary shares of a listed company in
consideration of ssuing 100,000,000 crdinary shares of
the subsidiary, which has resuited in 2 deemed disposal
of interests in that subsidiary.

PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES

Dwring the year, 1he Group acquired from an associzte 39.9% of
ssued shares capital in-eBanker USA.com, Inc. and the entire
fzsued shares in Global Growth Management inc. and 4.7% of
the issued share capital of Global Med Techaologies, Inc. for an
aggregale consideration which was satisfied by reducing the
anmount of convertible debentures issued by that assaciate to the
Group. The convenibie debenures were includéd in the balance
sheet as held-to-maturity securities and the acquisitions have
been accounted for by the acguisition method i accounting.

I oS R o TR E — o
BE-RFP_H==1+—-Hi%E

36.

37.

FEEREER

2 —ZE¥F-FEiH-BELA
eVision International inc.
i FeWision) | (8 MeVision
LS4 com, nc) BLE®ER
EHBE®AS 28,0008
e

o EEEAELF-ERE
LHER—-FELmEs
600,000,000 # SR -
BHITERNSS
100.000.00EFERER
HEREERBRTEAS
AitenRELSrma-.

BREELA

FR-EERNIMAR—ERE
£ F A WeBanker USA . Com, Inc.
39.9% 2 B B 17 & X E Global
Growth Mangement Inc 2BE &
HF RS RGIobal Med
Technologies. Inc, 4 7% EBH
BE-BRLRLUMEEEEER
gLrEESTIARRENENE
EHEHFA-TRENERRA
EEAREATREEEASE
AR EE i A R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued BB e Bk - NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued R R R
mam&mnmmnmlmn,zun BE-ET-SSAZF-REFE I FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 RE-EE-F=H=4—N ek
4. PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES — continued 37, BCRRHE S A - i 37.  PURCHASE OF SUBSIDIARIES ~ continued 37. GRMELE -2
2002 2001 i‘ The subsidizries acquired during the year did not have any EAGRIERLAREERRE-
PR HKS000 i mizterial contribation to the Group’s cash flow in respect of BEREREMERA-RE-8%
| pperating activities, returns on investments and servicing of FEDRREERIE-OHEZEN
: finance, 1axation, irvesting activities and financing activities. rEgReNEEEEEELR
nit assens acquined: MR EEE: - -
Investent properies BRRE B.432 = The suhsidizries acquired during the year did not have any FRERENLERERETSF
Progerty, plant and equipment HE - EERRS 1,904 5,44 material coniribution to the Group's twrnover and resulis from BraGEREESREREN
lrvestmenss in securities EHNH 4,636 - operations foc the year. ERAEE
5 - 373 _
Inventesies — g ) » e
. . % 33,603 = The subsidiaries acquired during the year ended March 31, 2001 RERE-FT-¥=-A=T-0
Amount due from gim.;p ST ggﬁiizgig 18,106 46180 | contributed approximazely HKS3,154,000 ta the Group's nel EEFGRZERLEARERN
Trade and gther recesvables EERRETER o 3 500 operating cash- inflow, paid approximately HK$9,934.000 in PRSI, 194,000E B HER S
Pledged bank deposits : r e B3 respect of met relums o0 investments and servicing of finance, EASE EERFERERER
Bank balances and cash g ggaiﬁtﬁ:rﬁ s . =1 paid approximately HK$345.00¢ in respect of imesting activities A %41 9,934 0008 K R ER K
Trade and other payables HREERE i38,214) e M0 and received approximately HK$585,000 in respect of financing EBEHAMS.00ERURER
Intangible assets BETRE 6,293 = 3 activities. % B 0 S £1985,000,0008 T
Conwertible debentures TRRERE 149,297) - 1
Basmowings =g {6,079 = The subsidiazies acquired during the year endied March 37, 2001 PRE-—STS=HA=1+—8
Obligations under finance leases EFEARM {1,423 - 1 cantributed approximately HK§42.745,000 to the Group’s tEERRIHELARESE
Mirsority Friterest PEEESE 16,465) - tumaver and corributed loss from gperations of approximately BEaAEEREREN
¥ HK$5,038.000 for the yeas. 12745 000 ERBEEEERE
2823 41,465 3,038,000% 7T+
Coodwill [Negative goodwill) BEREE 27.358 @2.72) 18, ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN FINANCING DURING THEYEAR 38, AERBIE 845
30,181 38,743 i 8 BER
'. EREE dARRE BRI | 53 ERRR
A P . F Share Hﬁﬁl-
Sagisfied by: EhiEA |_ Minoit Convertibi aﬂdfut Niibes —
Convestible debenture TRRNE 30,181 - | Hmm'm MH“W Htsm'au Hpqﬂiew msmr;
Cash paid in 2000 —RETFEHIES - 17,522 1
i i EELN - 21220 A A Aguill |, 2000 EtETE
N o et 2 Rt ] - 61337 4 548 1,251
10,181 38.743 Proceeds firom shares fmsved  TEMBEEERG
- ttpoa exercise of wairants BEREERE - - i k= -
b Mew Joans raised duting LEERERET
2002 2001 the year = B N . 1885
HKS"000 HKS'000 Repoymests duciog the vear £ FETH - = = (4,683 {3331
. i3 asitiorn wWEL AR A Manch. 31, 2001 FofI—8
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition # A5 =g=+-4 = = §83.518 z 430
Rank balances and cash acquired wmzETERA Contribution by reecry YETEEH )
B 41,127 8.773 shaeholders _ 18,980 - - = =
Jssue of share ty-a subsidiary  —BENLSRT
i acqesition of iovestment. BEGRARZE
In securities TRE 25,800 - - - -
Minoeity sharm of loss fot the REEAVERE
pear L2417 ] EREEN - - - -
Deemed duposal of imecess RALERRLT
| a subsigary ZRE 147 887) - - =
Acgrisitinn of ssheodiaries EEERLE 5,965 49,297 - - £07%
Regayments during theyear.  FEEEE - - - - {406]
A Masch 3T, 2007 EoRE2-E
1.36% 49357 hBE.53E - 10 47h




NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued MERREME--
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002 BRE-RR-E=H=+-HEFHE
39.  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 39. HEAH
Az the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities of the Group HENEERERELFZAE
and the Company were as follows: EERAET:
E 1 0% 2 0]
THE GROUP AND
THE COMPANY
2002 2001
HKS 000 HES000
fay  Guarantess given to 2 fmancial fa) BERNLIFERZ
insfitution in respect of banking ERERAER
facilities granted 1o subsidiaries ARFERR 3,884 3,884

The extent of the facilities utilised as at March 3%, 2002
by the subsidiaries amounted 1o HKS3, 430,000 2001:
HK$3, 737,000

(5] Actions were brought by Pricerite Stores Limited and
Pricerise Group Limfed (together referred to as “Pricerite”)
respectively, against a subsidiary of the Company, in
respect of the alieged breach of agreemens, for damages
which are not quantified. In the opinion of the directors,
it is not practicable at this stage to determine with centainty
the outcome of the liigation.

fel Two former staff of a subsidiary of the Company issued
wirits against the subsidiary claiming for wrongiul dismissal
of approximately HK$1,862,000 (200%: HK$1,862,000L
The direciors are advised by the legal counsel of the
Compary that it is unlikely that the former staff will
suceeed in their claims, Accordingly, no provision has
bean made in these financial stalements; and

(gl  The Group had given guarantes 10 an assaciate; eNision.
for the dividend payment on convertible B-1 Preferred
stock of approximately HK$3.1 million,

k)

{c}

(i

B2 -—F=H=T—
B.ERLSTREZET
ERERIANMBE IS
5 — 5 3,737.0008
e

FESERANELSRE
HEREARLT HRIN
B apunaERak-o
AEsEfrassELE
—~FRAFRLES P
EAnERaNERIER
TEEXEFIT-

*xoa-EERLTIRS
HEARSRELARES
#HoREIEERETRY
ESEP 18620008 KT
X 4 11,862,0008
T -EAPRELELTARRK
HErER SLESEE
ARmERZARTR-8
E-SERLEEEET
iR R,

EpECH-SERELa
eVision® B H & &
5, 100,00048 7E2 o] SR ELB-1
EEREARE-

STy

p—

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

40,

OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS
The Group and the Company as lessee

At the balance sheet date, the Group znd the Company had

MEEERE-g
BE_FEF_F=RA=+-—-H k%X

40, HEMHHER
ARMEBERKLFERREA

RENE RN EDTREE

commitment for future minimum lease payments under mon- TREMEE: A TEEERS
cancellable operating lease in respect of rented premises which EEARATEEER TR TH
fall due as follows: ZEEESET:
AN REE
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
002 2N 2002 200%
HKS$ 000 HES"0:00 HE$'000 HEKS"000
Within one vear —5/ 5.315 1496 - -
In the second &0 fidth years S ETERSE
inclissive IEETREME] B.534 2477 - -
13,849 4,973 = =
Ciperating lease pay represent renitals payable by the Graup ERESrAEESERERES
and the Company in respect of leased land and buildings. Lease SEFERrIRESTES S
e negotizted for 2 feom of bwo years with fixed rental, H-AngdcshngE S84
. B
The Group and the Company as lessor ARMREAGFERHEAN

At the balance sheet date, the Group and the Cempany had
contracted with tenants for the following future minimum Ezase

RENE-BRTHREENESET
THRERNREEES. L4 =

payments under non-cancellable operating feases in respect of RESECHREFGUTLARE
rented premises which fall due as follows: HEERTEH:
& Lok
THE GROUP THE COMPANY
002 2001 2002 oo
HEKS 000 HKS$"000 HK$ 000 HK#'omo
Within one year —EN 1,11 62& 39 16
In the second to fifth year BE_E=EREF
inclzstve IBETFERT) 3,004 144 - -
4125 772 39 16
Leases are negotiated for an average term of two years. BBz THERERELRE-



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

41.

42,

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the balance shest date, the Group pledged bank balances of
HES4. 216,000 (2001: HKSS 0740000 as a security for banking
facilities granted 1o a subsdiary and as securities for the credit
card Business transactions with MasterCasd Inzemational Irc.

The mortgage loans of HK$10,476,000 [20071:HKS4,803.000]
were secured on the investment properties and land ard
huildings of the Group with an aggregate carrying value of
HES 17,257,000 (2001 : HK$S,309,000)

RETIREMENT BEMEFIT SCHEME

Thee Group operates a defined contribution relirement benedit
scheme [*Defined Contribution Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the schems are held
separately from thase of the Greaip in funds under the control of
trustess. Where there are employees whe lsave the scheme prior
to westing fully in the contributions, the coatributions payable
by the Group are reduced by the amount of forfeted
contributions.

\With sffective from December 1, 2000, the Group has joined a
mandatory Provident Fund Scheme ("MPF Scheme”) far all
emgployees in Hong Kong. The MPF Schame is registered with
the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme Authority under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinznce. The assets of
the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of an independent trustee: Under the
rule of the MPF Scherme, the emplayer and s employees are
each required to make contributions to the scheme at rate
specified in the rules. The anly obiligztion’ of the Group with
respect of MPF Scheme is to make the required contributions
under the scheme. No forfeitsd contribution is available to reduce
the cantribution payable in the future years.

The retirement benefit scheme contributions arising from the
Defined Cantribution Scheme and the MPF Scheme charged to
the income nt regeesent contributions paid or payable to
the funds by the Group at rates specified in the rules of the
sthemes.

At the balance cheet date, the total zmount of forfeited
conribution; which anse wpon employees feaving the retiremen!
benefit scheme and which are available to reduce the
comtributions payabie in the future years was HK$142,000 [200%:
Mk

Tt 0 A G -
BE-FE-FSH=T—HEEE

41.

+2.

PrAN

SERH R EEEEL 216,000 T
(ZFT—F:50740008m) 2
SRR FRE ELARELE
EREBEFEARZERNAR
MasterCard  International
CorporationE T H FREXE
ZEE.

EEEEESA AT 257.00ER
[ —F % —E:8,309.000B 7 &
EHYSELEEET EHESE
FEXI0 4760008 K | —BF—
04,803,000 ) 2R T

ELE L]

AENELEFBESNBIES
-SSRk en
IfEHEESE] -BIHEZR
BEUZRELEHESERARY
ErxsMEESY-AAEARE
EimEasEmEd N ElnR
BEETHHREXSEERZE
.

H-STTE+ A -HEES
#ESELFRESHEASNE
MEARSHN I [EEEH
B EEEHRERSETER
WLHHER AEHE SRS
HEEELNH - SHLHNKZIES
HETEEABHESTEAR
TREEEEESA RAEAL
R EEREAWACBEE
ErETasiRER AEER
Gl R NERRER
HrERER-SEUREXAE
BT RRETEN 2 .

EHEENHREREAHEL
ZENHARRERSRREDR
FUEERISHNIER .28
HEHTEZIERME-

REER-EEARRREHY
pEEs-EARLRIREES
EHEXZETGEASEL
T2 000ER I —SF—F T -

i

=X

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — confinued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

43

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Company had wransactions with related
parties as follows:

{al As of March 31, 2001, Online Credit Limited (*Ownline
LCredit”) a subsidiary. of the Company held a total of
558,000,000 of the convertible debenture (the
“Convertible Debenture”] issued by an assoctate, eVision
International, Inc. (formedy known 2s eWision USA.conm,
Inc.} {"eVision™). The principal is dee on December 15,
2007 exceps for one instalment of USS500,000 whick is
die in March 2000. Online Credit extended the due date
of the USSS500,000 irstalment from March 2000 to March
2001 for which, eVision paid Online Credit 2 fee of
LIS515,000, in the form of 44,092 common: shares of
eVision. In consideration of a fee of 1% or US55,000
given by eVision, the due date of this instalment was
extended further 1o March 2002. In May 2001, eVision
settled LIS$660,000 of the debenture by way of payment
of cash of USS600,000 and USS60,000 was credited as
additional paid in capital .

O june-&, 2001, eVision and Oaline Credit, entered into
an agreement whereby eWision agreed to pay
U3$7,314,316 of principal and interest, in the form of
transferring ownership of assets, 10 Onfine Credit in
satisfaction of the Convertible Debentures outstanding.
The shareholders approved this transaction on November
28, 2001,

The ipterest on the Convertibie Debenture was paid in
form: of the shares of the e¥ision’s common stock and as
at March 31, 2002, eVision had accrued interest payzhble
of LISENIT (2007 US5424,222) to Online Credit refazing
to the Comvertible Debenture.
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43,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — contimwed

2]

fai]

The Company has guaranteed the payment of amy cash
dividends that accruse on the eVisions Convertible Series
B-1 Preferred Stock through October 31, 2002 & such
dividend is not paid by eVision. Pursuant to this guarantes,
the payments for April 30 and October 31, 2007 cash
dividends were made by the Group. In return, the Group
received convestible debentire for US$589.889 and
Us56t4,963 due on June and December 2006

respectively.

[ March 2000, eBanker LUSA.com, Inc. [“eSanker”), an
associate of eVision, doquired fram MBF Card International
Limited (*MB{*); & non-revelving interest in certain
outstanding credit card accounis receivable, for a total
consideration of USS7. 625,062,

following the acnuisition of the credit-card portiolio by
eBanker, Online Credit acquired MBf and changed the
name of MBF to. Online Credit Card Limited (OCCLYL OCCL
processes the credit cand collections for eBankes, remits
collection 10 eBanker on a monthly basis, and manages
and absorbs (i) the administration and overhead costs of
the portiolio including rent, ctilities, salaries. wages,
benefits, and hardwars, soitware and other equipment
costs, (i) the underfying cards’ benefits and bonus points
program, (iii) one-third of any charge-ofis and fivl the
provision of 24-hours customer support.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

43, RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — continued

fch - continued

During the year ended March 31, 2002, OCCL entered
into agreements with eBanker and eCredit Card HK Limited
(“eCradit Card”), a subsidiary of eBanker, respectively 1o
provide credit card facilities to seweral: unrelated
companies in Hong Kong. The credit card facilities bear
interest at the rate of 3% per month and is administered
by OCCL. In exchange for OCCLs administration of the
facilities incliding legal documentation and due ditigence,
eBanker and eCredit Card has agreed to pay OCCL 10%
per annum oo eBanker’s and eCredit Card’s share of the
outstanding balznces. The share of the outstanding credit
card balances by eBanker and eCredit Card as of March
31, 2002 amounted to HKS17,478,502 (2001:
HE$38,568,081) and HK$4,294,639 (20071 Nl
respectively.

In connection with the above arrangements, eBanker
received interest of HK$5.625,5834 (2001: HK$8,499,645)
and paid OCCL a fee of HK§7,503,117 i2001:
HK$1,163.863) for the year 2nd the amount due to

eBanker as of March 31, 2002 amounted to

HEKS18, 262,850 [2001; HKS44,470,450), eCredit Card
received interest of HKS1.643.831 and paid the Company
a fee of HK$472.238 for the year and the amount dus 1o
eCredit Card as of March 31, 2002 amounted o
HE$5.339,974.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

43,

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

{d

Porsuant 1o an agreement dated September 19, 2041
entared between Online credit and eBanker, Cnline Cradit
received from eBanker financial adwisory fee- of
HK$3,900,000 [US5500,000) during the year

On February 20, 2002, eVision and Heng Fung Capital
Company Limited (Heng Fung Capital), 2 subsidiary of
the Company, entered into 2n agreement whesely Heag
Fung Capital agreed to acquire the 73.370 shares of
American Pacific Bank stock held by eVisien for
UIS4§256,795. This amount approximates eVision's cost in
the shares and is 2pproximately US$26,000 above what it
is valued al as of December 31, 2001 in the consolidated
balance sheet, The value was based on the closing price
of the stock in the market for the 20 trading days prios fo
the agreement. OF the acquisition price LUS530,000 has
already been paid in cash US$133.994 will be paid in
cash upon 2 seven day written request and the remainder
of LI6892,801 &5 o be paid by Heng Fung Capital assuming
USS90.000 of eVision's debe,

Pursuant to an agn ni dated & ber 2, 2001 entered
into berween the Group and CCHL, CGHL paid
managemen service fee of HKS$200,000 10 the Group for
the provision of managemen and suppon services related
to corporate services, capilal raising and other support as
requested by CGHL during the peried from October 1,
2001 to March-31, 2002:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continwed

43,

gl

WOdes:
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Hii)

{ivd

Pursuant 10 an- agr t dated N ber 30, 2007
enfered info between Onfine Credit and CGHL, CGHL
paid an one-time non-refundable initial set up fee of
HK$§980.000 1o Online Credit for issuance of a Co-branded
MasterCard Card knmown as "Hai Xia Onfine MasterCard™.

M. Chan Heng Fai, a director and substantisd shaseholder of the:
Compasy, is the Chai President and Divector of #Vision
and iy also a dinecsor of eBaniker and Amverican Pacific Baok.

Mr. Trapp Roben Herman, & lomoer noosexecutine direcion al
the Companmy. who indirectly bolds cevtain isswed shares of the
Company, & a dicecios of Vision.

Mr. Forg Kwaok jen, & nos-executes disector and & sharebolder
ol the Campasy, is 2 director ol eVision and eBankes

Mr. Chan Tong Wan is 2 director of eBanker and Amerigan Pacific
Bank.

The terms of the above transactions were mutually agreed by the
parties involved.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

44, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

[a]

ihi

On Apeil 24, 2002, the Group erlered into 2 compromise
agreement fthe *Compromise Agreement”) with MBY Asia
Capital Corporation Holdings Limited ("MBf Asia”)
pursizant to which the parties agreed to cancel 2l
fitigations refaling to:the purchase by the Company of
Online Credit Card Limited ["DCCL"} and settle a net
amount of HK$23,100.000 due by the Group 1o MBF Asia.
The princigal terms. of the Compromise Agreemens are-

(il Payment by the Company of ‘a total of HK$B.5
millign in -cash, of which HK$7.1 million & payable
on the senlement date, HK$700,000 six months
fater and HK$700.000 twelve moaths lader.

(i) Transfer by the Group to MBI Asia of shares
representing a 18% interest in OCCL with a deemed
value between the parties of HKS14,600,00:0.

On April 6. 2002, 3 supplement agreement in respect of
the grant of option by the Company 1o Hai Xia Finance
Holding Limited (“Hai Xia Finance®) to amend cenain
terms and conditions of the agreerment dated July 27, 2001
fthe “Ciption Agreement”). Under the Option Agreement,
the Company, Hai Xia Finance and CGHL eatered into an
agreement whereby the Company has agreed to grant to
Hai- Xia Finance an option to-acguire up to 360,000,000
shares in the capital of CGHL at a price of HK$0.16 per
share within 12 months from the date of satisfaction of
certain conditions. A summmnary of the lerms of the Optien
Apgre and soppd al ag is setoul in 2
circudar of the Company dated August 21, 2007 and an
announcement of the Company dated Apsil 11, Z002
respectively.
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

44.  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS — confinued

i)

el

On April 29, 2002, 2n agreement was entered into
between the Company and Kingston Securities Limized
1"Kingston™) pursuant to which the Company has appointed
Kingston as placing agent for placing of 37,230,000
comvertible preference shares of nominal value of HKS1.00
each in the czpital of CGHL (*Preference Shares™) held
by the Company at & placing price of not less than
HKS0.17 per ordinary share of CGHE converted from the
Preference Shares to independent panies. The plaging was
rompleted on juse 11, 2002 and 2 total of HK$37,230.000
weas received by the Company (before expenses).

Omn Apeil 29, 2002, a co-operative agreement was entered
into between the Group and Hai Xia Finance pursuant to
which Hai Xia Finance will procure exclusive imestment
projects in the area of natural gas pipelines instaliation
and supply of natural gas. A semmary of the terms of the
co-operative Jgreement is sef oul in an announcement of
COHL dated April 30, 2002,

On May 4, 2002, she Group entered into three agreemients
0 acquire ar aggregate of B0% interest in Besjing Xiangke
liahua Ol & Gas Technology Co., Lid, (EEHBEESE
ERWMARLE) by way of purchase of existing equity
mterests and injection of new capital for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HKS$28.691,589, A
summary of the terms of the three agreements i se1 oul
in an anrouncement of COHL dated May 9, 20002,

Om May 7, 2002, a placing agreement was entered infho
between the Group and Sino-Finance Asset Managemant
Limited purswant to which the Group has zgreed 10 allot
and issue 1o Sino-Finance Assel Managemen Limited an
apgregate of 33,333,333 new ardinary shares in the capital
of CGHL at 3 price of HK40.20 per share, subject to,
amang other things, the Sock Exchange granting the listing
of, and permrssion to deal in the new shares. A summary
of the terms of the placing agreement is sez owt in an
annowencenient of CGHL dated May 9, 2002.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

44,

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS - continued

g}

1.1}

LG]

On May 13, 2002, the Group eatered info an agreement
with Hong Kong Syndisome Co., Limited ("HESCo")
pursaant to which HKSCo 2nd the Group agreed to form
i company incorporated fn Samoaz [the “Samoa
Company”). The Samoa Company will be owned as 10
53% by the Group and 45% by HKSCo. The proposed
todal investment in the § Company s approximately
HK$120 million which will be funded a5 to HK$66 million
by the Group and HK$54 million by HKSCo. OF the
amount te be funded by the Group. HKS8.4 million will
be contributed by Hai Xia Finance when the Group assign
7% of its shareholding in the Samoa Compary to Hai Xia
Finarce purssant to an agreement 2s stated in note: 44(h)
below: A summary of the terms of this sgreement is set
out in an announcement of CGHL dated May 16, 2002,

O May 16, 2002, an agreement weas entered inta between
the Group and Hai Xia Finance pursuant to which the
Group agreed 1o atsign 7% of its shareholding in the
Samoa Company 1o Hai Xia Finance upon formation of
the Samoa Company and Hai Xia Finance agreed to invest
a total of HESE.4 million to the Sampa Companmy. A
summary of the tesms of the agreement is sel out in an
announcement of CGHL dated May 16, 2002

h

Oin May 27, 2002, an ag et was d into n
the Company and Prime Star Group Co., Lid., a company
peneficially wholly-owned by Mrs. Chan Yoke Keow, 2
dHirector of the Company, Ithe “Subscriber”) in relation to,
among others, ihe subscription of 80,000,000 new shares
(s ~Suhscription Shares”) by the Subscriber and the issue
of the Bonus Shares and Sonus Warrants,

The Bonus Shares are §o be issued with the Subscription
Shares andior on the exercise of the Bonus Warmranis, as
the case may be.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

44, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS - continzed

M - continued

The Bonrus Warrant(s) are to be isswed with the
Subscription Shares on the basis of one Bonws Warrant
ior every Subscription Share isssed and entitling holders
thereof to subscribe for one new Share at the initial
subscription price of HK$0.35 per Share and each entilling
holders to be issued one Bonus Share for every Shase

subscribed,

The details of the arrangement contained in a circular of
the Company dated July 8, 2002 issued o shareholders.

{f}  On june 8, 2002, the Group entercd into an agreement
with Hai Xia Finance pursuant lo which the Group and
Hai Xia Finance agreed to form a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands (the *BV] Company”y, The 3V
Company will be owned as to 29% by the Group and
57% by Hai Xia Finance. The proposed issued share capital
of the BVl Company is HKS10 million which will be
fundest by the Group and Hai Xia Finance as to HK$4.9
million and HK$5.7 million respectively. A summary of
the terms of rhis agreement & set dul in an announcemen

of COHL dated June 10, 2002,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

34.  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS - continued

[13]

On June 13, 2002, China Cas Development Group
Limited, a company which is indirecily owned as to 49%
by CGHL and 51% by Hai Xia Finance {*5amoa Company
1), entered into:

(i

An agreement with the People’s Government of
Suirhau City (“PGSCT) pursuant to which the Samoa
Company Il and PG5C agreed to establish a Sing-
fereign equity joint venture company in the PRC
{“Sisizhow IV} to principally engaged in the design,

“ponstruction and operation of patural gas pipeline

netwark and ancillary facilities as well as prowvision
of piped nawral gas in Suizhou, Hubel pravince,
the PRC. It is expected that the Swizhou |V will
bave a registered capital of approximately RMBSH
million tzpproximately HK$47 million) to be
contributed and owned as to 33% by Samoa
Comgpany Il and 15% by PGSC. The total imestment
of the Suizhou jV is estimated to be approximansly
BME150 million (appraximately HK5142 miflion).
it &5 expected that the Suizhou [V shall have a term
of 50 years.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

44.  POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS - conlinued

(k) - continusd

il

[3d)

An sgreement with Yichang City Matural Gas
Company Limited ["YCNG*) pursuant to which the
Samoa Comgpany agreed to esfablish a Sino-foreign
equity joint venture company in the PRC (*Yichang
V") 1o principally engage in the design,
construcizon and operation of natural gas pipeline
network and ancillasy facilities as well 25 provision
of piped natural gas in Yichang, Hubei Province,
the PRC. It is expected thar the Yichang IV will
have a registered capital of approximately RMBS4
million lapproximately HK$31 million) to be

onributed and d as to 90% by Samca
Company Il and 10% by YCNG. The total
investment of the Yichang IV is estimated 1o be
approximately RMB1S0 million (approximately
HE3 170 million). kt is expected that the Yichang TV
shall have a term of 28 years.

Anagre with Developmient Plan Commission
of Shiyan City (*DPC") pursuant to which Samoa

Company || and DPC agreed 1o establish a Sino-

foreign euity joint venture company in the PRC
(“Shiyan V") 10 irvest in the natural gas projects
in Shiyzn, Huber Province, the PRC. It is agreed
that Shivan IV will be owned 25 te not less than
50% by Samoa Company [l and the rémaining
balance by DPC, The total imvestrment of the Shiyan
IV 5 20 be determined in accordance with a project
feasibility report to be completed.

A summary of the terms of the above agreements is set
out in the announcement of CGHL dated june 14, 2002,
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

44, POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS — continued

]

i)

Om lune 28, 2002, the Group entered into a conditional
zgreement o dispose of an equivalent of 4% of the Bssuad
share capital of Giobal Med International Limited 20 an
independent third panty for a consideration of HX$1E
eniflion;

On July 15, 2002, Timeskink Holding Limited |=Tomeshink”),
a subsidiary of CGHL enteved info an agreement with
China Main Investment (H.K.) Company Limited and an
outside party, Ms. Ma Xizoling pursuant 1o which Timeslink
has conditionally agreed to acquing the entire share capital
of Elegant Cheer Limited and the shareholder’s loan at'2
watal consideration of HK$19 million. The consideration
shall be satisfied by CGHL by way of issuing, credited as
fully paid 16,325,829 ordinary shares of CGHL ala price
of HK$1.1638 per share.
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—eE—EANBE_+AE.
ERETEARERE- S
W EE B Global Med
International Limited %2
ERAEXTEIRZE-
0 218,000,000 T

RoF¥—_5LATER:
PRBE-mMEELSS
Timeslink Heldings Limited
| [ Temeskink | ) B EEE
B iER ARLE RN
e e ]
BR B2FEHE Timeslink
ERESEETHARN
19,000,000 T B A
Elegant Cheer LimitedZ &
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MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

4350

PARTHCULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of principal subsidiaries a1 Manch 31, 2002 are as

follows:
[i3 ¢ S
BE2A LR E 28]
Place of
Mame of lﬂlﬂ' m

China Gas Holdimgs Limited Bermuda

{foermetty known as ke
Hiai Nia Holdings mited
and eBiiz.kk com Limized)
TREEFEATESE
IRESHIEERLAR
BEREEawRLS
eBanker UISA.coen, Inc Uinited Saztes
(Note e} of America
EHZLRR
eCredin Singapoce Pe. Singapare
Lim#zed EEE
eglobaljob. com Limited Haong Kong
i
Faith Prodit Limited Hong Kong
S#RERLT &%
Fronsesr Secuzities {HK) Hiong Rang
Limited B

EEREHEES

EREE
HERK

tioa! lssued and fully

paid share capital

Ordimary
HK$485,026,000

BERS 060002 R

Non-woting
cumulative
redeemabide
convertible

preference shares

HK§105,902 477

[Mone a5

ERREEHTNE

FHEEER
105,202 47T R T
(Bizka)

Comman stock
USE27, 159,000
| Secies A
preferred stock
(Mote b
raE
27,159,000 &
—RARHEEE
(B En

SCGDSTIATT, 282
13,417 24288 &

Ordinary HE§2
TEREE
Ohrdinary
HK$1 0,000
BRI 0002 E

Ordinary HKS2
RERIEX

Jod 48t o I -
BRE-—¥F_F=A=+—-NikiEe
45. MNAAHE
#HoRR —E=FH=E+—HXE
HROEZEEDT:
EEIRBOREG
Bk s EERE
L% R
Fropertion of
rominal value of
. 3 caital
beld by the Company  Principal activities
Diirecily Indirectly
% %
- 52.9 Investmens
holding
RESR
= ]
- 35.7 Financizl
investment:
- 100 MRS
98.6 - Emvestment holding
iRER
- 529 lovestment holding
AEROE
- 524 Progeny holding
SEEY
- 52.9 Financial and
securities
invesimen

HERESEN



WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

45,

PARTICULARS (OF SUBSIDMARIES ~ continuwed

ERadnE

Mame of subsidiary

Glohal Growth Management
Ine.

Global Med Technologies

Inc. [Note el

Heng Fung Capital
Company Liznited
EEREERLT

Heng Fung Capital, Inr

Herg Fung Capital
(Canada) Inc.

Reng Fung Equities, knc,

Heng Fung Lindenwrites
Limited

Iwi Pasis: Lienthed

bwai's Holdings (Hong
Kong} Limited

aERE
Enug

Place of
incorporation’
operation

Canada
mEk

United States
of America
EHEERR

Hong Kong
EE

Unized: States
of America

EEEARR

Canada
i

United States
of America
FHELER

Hong Kong
wE

Hong Kang
&

Heong Koeg
52

ERfiR
BREL

tssued and fully
paid share capilal

us5T
138 %

Ussz44
pEEE

HK$2
Fi-7

LIS515,000
15,0008 <

Mote c)
(B

U551 5,000
15,0005 7T

HE52
MW

Ordirany
HES5040, 000
B R so0,0008 T

Qedinary
HE$1,000
BFER1L00ET
Noa-voting
dederred shaves
HE$1,000,000
{Mote di
ENEEEES
1.000,0002 =
| B Rkt

B 5 R -

BECEREEA=S+— bR
45. MEASEE-#

REERECET
Bk K
i R
Propestion of
rominal value of
isswed capital
Beld by the Company
Directh Sadecth
% *

- 986

= s

00 =

= 52.9

EERE

Principal activities

Propemy investment
WERE

Mediczl saitware
lopment
EFEOGER
Secyrities
Emvestment

ESR¥

levestment holding
fRERR

Property helding
BESE

Socarith
Irwestment
ERAWE

Secarities trading
EHAN

Ciperalion of
Tashion: retzil

shops
SRHETUE

ARER-HEAK
RREBEREET
e 3

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES — continued

ENLaES

MName of sehsidiary

twai's imesiments
Limnited

Keng Fong Amesica
E ° imated
BEZHESERAS

Keng Fong Canada
Enterpeiies Limnited
ERmELESaRLa

Keng Fong Foreign
Investmend o Lid,

Keng Fong Malaysia
Enferprises Limited
RREETERARLE

Luekford Ertprpuise
Limised
AHRERERLS

Hai Xia Finarce LimSed
ormerdy known as
Mall 368.com Limitedi
(MR L ES
HELHE)

Hai Xia Trawel Linsited
tHormerly known &5
PhoneBox Inlernational
Lirmited]

{8 EPhomefon
Internaional Limited)

iR CEirk
ftenyg SEEXK
Place of

incomporation/ Issued and fully

The British Oediniary
Wirgin iskands/ HK§10,000
HomgKong ~ $ES 100008 %
ERETEL.”

g2
Hong Kong HK$1,500,000
ER 1.500,0003% T
Hurg Kang HK$10,000
. EH2 10,0008 7
United States US4250,000
of America 250,000% T
EIHERTRA
Hing Kong HKS.100,000
&= TOM 0008
Hiang Kong Ordinary
it HEST0,000
FERIDOBE
Hong Keng Oxdinary HE$2
Ei FEREE
Homg Kang Cedinary HES2
Fz HER1BE

HERAEME-—m
RE-BR _E=A=F—piimn

5. MELASNE-N

KEAwBOEn
BERELS
iR 3 [ £
Proportion of
nomenal value of
isswed capital
held by the Company
Directly Indirectly
% %

= 529

EEER

Primcipal activities

Irvnestment habding
muER

Envestmeni holding
REER

Investment halding
4 §d-

Property
Irvesiment zmd
development
BRRNEEE

Investment Rolding
fiRER

Propeity
development
HERR

Securities
Investment
EEAR

rvestmens balding
R



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

45,  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - conlinued

EEsELR

Namee of subsidiary

Masary hwai Enterprises
{Hoeg Kong) Limited

Olime Credit Cand
Limited
EFEEEFHELSH

Diline Credit Limted
BEOREREA
Orline Discound Card
Limied
SEEMCHRLAA

Peopleied.com, Inc

{Mise )

Rasa Sayang Limited

Sure Woeld Cagpizal
Limited

s
L8]

Place of
aperation

Hong Kong:
e

Hang Kang.
F

wE

Hang Kang
2

Unsted States
of Amerca
rEZAEN

Homng Kiong
R

Brifish Wisgin
klands
AEEXER

ERfR
HERK

imcarporalion/ Issued and fully
paid share capital

Ordinary
HKST.000,000
Fax
1,000,000% %

Oindinary
HIKE1 20,000,000
FaR
120,000,000 &
7% MNon-vobing
ermulative
redeemable
peeference shares
HKS13, 866,230
TRERSEEN
IMERER
13,866,230 %

HES1, 260,000
12600008 5

Oirdinary
HKS1 2,000,000
KHER
12,000, 000/8 &

L2559.040
504033

HES 10,000
10,0008

L5550,000
50,0003 7T

BB B -=
BRE-REL=§==+—HiIL¥HK

5. MEATEE-=

ELaEsCal
RAEELE TERE
R Bl
Proportion of
neminal value of
held by the Comipany  Principal activities
Directly Indirecify
% %
= 529 Trading of fashica
apparel and
accessories
BERALER |
REER i
- 9E8.6 Credint card
SEMICes }
ERERE
- 98.6 [envestenent holding
fEER
- 9E.6 Discount card
SEMVI0ES
EEERE
= 330 Medical Healthcare
EdprEs
100 - Securities
inwestment
BEERE
oo - Investment hobding
o EodR

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS — confinued
FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 31, 2002

45.  PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES — continued

LML el R
HEELERE #INS SREK
Place of
incorporations Issoed and fully
Name of subsidiary operation paid share capital
Wai = Snvestmen Hong Kong HKE600,000
Comparyy, Limited FE 600,000/ T
BREEARLE
Wellgem Asia Limited Hang Kong HE$10,000
AASHERLE ik TOLCCDE
York Winner Invesiment Hang Kong Ordinary HK§2
Limiged EE FEEER
BARWERLS
Nates:

km:;;aﬂg;m:}:lge redeemable. convenshie prelerence
g anes"} Camy equal s and mank pan passe
with one anather & follorms: i Lo i

L]

Halders of the CF Shases are entitled in PGy 1o arry
dividend payalrle wn respett af 1he sidirany shares af
CGHL at cumasl anmual preé f dpadend rates
of 3 per cee. per anncem on the principal amognt of the
CF Shares which are specified in e subscription
agresrment dated February 12, 1999 and two supplement
agreerments duted Febeuary 15, 1959 and March 9, 1599
respectively. Subgect to the Comparies At of Bermods,
e dividend is pavable cumudasive and semi Iy in
arrezrs-an March 31 and Seftember 30 In each year
dusieng the comversion pariod which lls 280 the second
snniersary from the date of issue of the CP Shares and
the first pay s dhue on e 3, 2001,
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45, MELAKE-2

KAEARWORET
EdEflEx FERE
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Proportion of
mominal valee of
Essued capital
held by the Compasy Principal activities
Directly  Indirectly
[ o
100 - Investrent
BEEE
3 519 Propesty
HEagER
- 529 Fanancial and
securities
Frvestment
HERSTHAN

MaE:

a. FRERMEERTEETS
REERI(ARERTR
FhEYESEF:

@ PR ke
ER=SREHIER

HMRERER BN
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FIRH-RESBT
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EEM SR
BRIBHUMER -
M- Egs=H=
— B B A =
MRSy HEET -
K iWmEEEN—%T
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2042

45,

PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES - contimped
Noges: — conlEnwed

5] The CF Shares are comvertihle im malbiples of 1000000
1nto the ardinary shares o CGHL

tiifi  The CF Shares are also redeerszhle a1 the principal
amaownis oo the maturity dape or the sarfiest date
permitted under 18 Campanies Act of Bersuda,
whichever = the later. The mamarity dave @ the fifth
anaiversary of the iwsues date of the CF Shares.

il The CP Shases do.not have any witing rights.

b The Geoap hodds 2 39.7% interet in eBanker LISA com, o #nd
cantrol eguivabent propostion of voting right. In-additional, the
Group holds a share of series A prefered stock, whith eatifies
the Grougp 50 50% of the vote Sor the Board of Direstor, Thereforns,
ilis aocounted for a5 a subsidiany,

. As of the balance sheet dare, no pa of 1he capital bas been
contribaed.

. The noni-woling dederved shares, which are not held by the Group,
pracheally camry mo rights to dnvidends or 1o recetve notioe-of or
to anend o vode af any genesal meefing of the respective
company OF - panicipate in 2y stribution on windeng 1.

'S The year end date of these subsidiaries I December 31;
sconelingly the financial information of these subsidises that
comwalidated inso the Growp's lidased fimancial ¥
are deacn up 1o ol year eedd date.

None of the subsidiadies bad any loan capital outstanding art the
end of the yearorat any time during the yeasr.

The above table lists the principal subsidiaries of the Groug. To

give details of other sabsidiartes would, in the opinion of the
directors, resull in panticulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — confinued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2002

46.

WM -
BECSFT-¥=H=1—-nkER

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATE 46. FTERESARY

Particulars of principal associate ar March 3%, 2002 are as E-¥F-ES=H=+-8E®m

follows: BRELEZHENT:
EEWAR
Hid KadmRCeRER”
BHAEEAE HRes ENEEERE bR ETERE
ik R
Propartion of
Place of nominal value of
incorparation/ issued capital/
registration/ regislered capital
Mame of associate operation held by the Company ‘Principal activities
Directly Indirectly
] %
eViston Infernational, Inc. USA oE e Securilies i
{farmerly known as £ ] a.#g‘;m

eViséon USA.Com, Inc.)
1| BeVision USA.Com, Inc )

The above table lists the principal aisociate of the Group. To
give details of other associales would, in the opinion of the
directors, resudt in particulass of excessive lengih,
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY o VR R PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES e TET1 T

AT MARCH 31, 2002 RE¥¥=¥=A=+—n
BE=A=+—-Nk%Ex M e LB Y
For the year ended March 31, Location Eftective % held .
2002 2001 2006 1989 1938 ) L M M
HES'000  HKS'000  HXS'DO0  HKS'000 HKS 800 i LAND AND BUILDINGS +M RS
RESULTS 3] ) Moo 326 Kwun Tong Road 529 tradussrial: [F T Ay p—
! Kweun: Tong I#d TS
Turnover ERE 60,685 67,621 56,045 40,285 172.297 Heowloon
= Hong Kong
Operating loss E8ER 47.980) {100,439} 33,317 {4,413 (155350 FELRRERES 8
Share of resudis af Eissgos .
associates =2 - - - (B4961) (29448 Ma. 35 North Canal Road, 986 Office premises Medeum term lease
Singapoes e ERES
Loss hefore taxation BEWMES 47,9800 (100,435 03,317 (29,3731 (184,800
Taxation B 83 810 (1326 44,25 773 INVESTMENT PROFERTIES R¥ENE
Loss before minarise R PREE ﬁ__z:lff i :“'*':Bﬁ el 52.9 Office premises Long fease
interests EEREE 147,893 [99,82%) 04543 (33,626)  (183,027) ot Mercary 5‘;‘;“ = T BiAE Epan
o N = P Merc
Minasity interests tREERE 8183 838 703} 2471 | S5 M. 7584
King's Road, North Peint
Met lass for the year *FEERTES 139,708) 199,829 (33,8050 (34,329 (181,856 ' Hmfg Kong
o ! FEAAKEEINE
Cents Cents Cents Cents § Cents # | ERETs gt
FoLSANNNER
Loss per share - basic BREH-¥% {3:131 787 2. 701 {2.75) (1758} : IMIDERIENE G
REA=F—W | Unit A on 7th Floor 52.9 Industeial Medium 4
As at March 31, Good Luck Industrial Building g T
2002 2001 2000 1999 1998 Mo, 105 How Ming Street
HKS'000 HES'008  HES'000  HKS000  HEKS000 Kwun Tong
| Kowloon
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HEEAW I Hong Kong
ERLERESHE 105
Total assats auE 372570 315,270 356,670 382,073 434,653 | FETRARTEELA
Total Habitities 2aM 1142,1680 (89,155 (30,1473 (24,542} (37,484} !
Minpaity interests PHENELD {1,965} - - [838) 135} [ Unis- A on-111h Floor 539 Industrial NSO B N
Good Luck Industrial Building TER o+ R £
Shareholders’ funds BEEE2 228,767 229,115 326,532 I56,693 . 396,984 | Mo 105 How Ming Sireet
- = —_— e Kwun Tong
Mate:  The above financisl summany proe-ta 1998 has nof been adivsted S0 ke B tE—-ALRLAFHEZAEYAEE Kowloon
mite accocunt the effect op 9= adoption of the S a1 of Saandand SFEfELME U EEEFEA SN Homg Kong
Actounling Praciive 24 “Acoounting for imrestmenss in securities” issued by S T esAr N R R WA FREALERSGHE 05
the Hong Komg Society of Acoountants s the dizecions comadered that it is AR ZEN ANERESEDR HETE LSS EaA
nnd practicalidfe so de sn LA T =
Car Parking Space No. P9 52.9 Car park space Medium term leass
] on Groend Floor 16 & S
! Good Luck tndustrial Building
] Noo 105 How Ming Street
[| Kwiin Tong
Kowloon
Hong Kong
FRAEBRSETHE IR
MEIRRE



PARTICULARS OF MAJOR PROPERTIES — continued FTEHEEEE -2

AT MARCH 31, 2002 R-FR-HF=H=+-n
E ] HERGE ¢ BiEY
Location Effective % held Type Lease term

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES — continued HERE-—92

Mo, B50D3, 4521 1090 Apartmeent Freehold
53rd Street, Diefta, British o5 FaE |
Columbia, Canada and Mo, 1281

Albemi Straet, Vancouwver

British Codumbia, Canada

REESRSE

IR1 Melson Strees SH.6 Single-stocey ground Freehold
Vancouser {loor schoolioftice unit ESE 1§
British Cofiembia ERET

Canada EHSREE

EEieRE

PROPERTIES HELD FOR DEVELOPMENT #HEER2Z%ER

Apt 6FT-180-012-013-014-085-016-017-07 8 109 Vacant [and Freebold
in Riverside County T L 3
California, RS AL

EEREREREH

TEWER

671-180-012-0713:01 4-015-016-017- 016X TW &
iSite area: K75 acres)

IEEFEE 6758

Lot Mo, 1210 and 1271 50 Vacant Land Medinm term kease
Demarcation District Mo, 316 =% B RE
MNew Territories, Hoag Kong

FEERLEHAMII6E

MBEZToRRI2E

Meos. 28 - 30 Kai Tak Road 519 Vacamt land Medium term fease
Kowloon City g S REH
Kowloon, Kong

TEAELERIEEIEEEER

MNos, 16-20, Baker Street 529 Vacant land Mediura ferm lease
Hung Hom = FEEH
Kowloon, Hong Kong

FELEIROES 16 E208

b3 L o HESHE X e
Location Square melre  Effective % held Type Lease term
PROPERTIES HELD FOR SALE #FMEHRER

Car parking spaces Mos. 22 to 24 on 30 o0 Car parking Medicm term
Foweer GIF,, Inverness Willa space leasa

Mo, 22 Inverness Road 7B G i
Kowloon Tong, Horg Kong

FHAEET® LHIE

HEIBRERTES

N|EMRDAED




